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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

DIRECTORS® REPORT

DIRECTORS* REPORT

The Management herewith presents the consolidated and separate financial statements of KSS Global B.V. for the
financial period ended December 31, 2012,

General

KSS Global B.V. (“the Company™) was incorporated on February 13, 2009 by KazStroyService Infrastructure B.V.
end Kazstroyservice Holding B.V. (currently known as AT Holdings Europe B.V.), the Netherlands,

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s main shareholders are Kuzstroyservice Infiastructure B.V., AT Holdings
Europe B.V. and Fraseli Investments SARL,

Detailed information on the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™) and a Restructuring of 2012 are presented
further.

Overview of activities and results

The Group is » leading player in providing project management, engineering, procurement and construction services
for oil and gas, industrial plant and infrasiructure sectors. KSS geographical presence includes Kazakhstan, India,
Middle East, Turkmenistan, Singapore, UK, Hungary and the Netherlands. K88 possesses integrated technical
capltal and recognized expertise in providing end-to-end solutions in all industry segments, where it aperates.

The Group possesses a world class engineering, project management and execution expertise along with large fleet
of modem construction equipment. These unique capabilities and competence coupled with our history of successful
delivery of projects and sustained presence in Kazakhstan and Indian market makes vs a contractor of choice in
these markets. The Group also enjoys a strong position in specialized fabrication services and Operations &
Maintenance services through with Keppel Kazakhstan LLP and PSN Kazstroy JSC associates.

Market Conditions/Qperating Environment

The Group has derived most of it revenue from Kazakhstan and India, which are amongst the fastest prowing
economies in the world, Kazakhstan economy has been relafively insulated from the impact of the worsening
economic outlook scross the world as growth has not deteriorated in 2012 and the Kazakhstan economy has
continued to benefit from high globel oil prices and growth in oil output, Indian cconomy also has continued to grow
in the year 2012, though at a moderate pace agginst the backdrop of weakening global economy, twin deficits and
high inflation rate. Due to high interest rate prevalent in India as a measure to control inflation, the private
investment and indusirial capital expenditure has come down which has affscted the industrial construction segment
in Indiz, However, government has continued to spend to develop the infrastructure in the country spurring demand
for construction services in 2012 and construction market segment in India remained buoyant throughout 2012 on
account of expenditure by Government ,

Further, there is an increased investment in oil and gas sector as il prices remained high throughout 2012 driven by
increased level of consumption by Asian and emerging economies and by sacial and political tension in a number of
oil producing nations. This led to renewed interest in many new investments, and tevival and award of many old
projects as the oil price bounced back to above USD 100/Barrel level. Further, there is an increased expenditure by
governments of Kazakhstan as well as India to develop the infrastructure segment and large numbers of projects
have been awarded by both government and private segment in infrastructure and Industria! plant segments.
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KazStroyService Global B,V. Financial Staternents

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)
Human Resources

The Group employed 2 work force about 17,000 employees, which are working on projects across multiple
continents. This number includes temporary workets, full time employees, but excludes subcontractors. There were
various initiatives including training programs undertaken for skill development and to improve employee’s
productivity.

The Group is aware of the need for a balanced distribution of men and women in accordance with article 2:276
section 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. The appointment of directors has historically been made to represent the interest
of shareholders and as happened those shareholders have always appointed male bourd members, In the future,
where possible, when directorships are in need of being replaced, the Group will encourage its shareholders to
appoint female board members so as to provide & more balanced distribution.

Health Safety and Environment (HSE)

The Group has implemented HSE guidelines to ensure the health and safoty of employees, contractors, clients and
local communities and the safeguarding of the environment in accordance with the international best practices and in
compliance with local and international rules and regulations. The Group in its pursuit of exceflence continued to
drive its foous fo improve performance.on Health, Safety and Environment. In 2012, the Group orgamized several
HSE training courses with the aim of driving awareness about Health and Safety and promoting a eulture of health
and safety, These training programs were run across project sites encompassing all employees as well as our
subcontractors. The KSS Group Safety performance in 2012 was satisfactory and in line with targets set.

Gronp Restructaring

The Group has continued its restructuring program to further consolidate the Group’s India Operations and create a
structure which is regulatory compliant, tax efficient and provides greater operational synergy and financial
flexibility,

As at February 15, 2013, 25% of shares in OGCC KazStroyService JSC were transferred at cost to KazStroyService
Hungary Kft (KSS Hungary),

As at February 2013, within the Group restructuring exercise (“Group Restructuring”), the Honorable Bombay High
Court has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Petron Civil Engineering Private Limited, Petron Investments
Private Limited, Amritha Sharanya Leasing and Investments Private Limited and SRA Finance snd Investments
Private Limited with KazStroyService Infrastructure India Private Limited and their respective shareholdsts and
creditors, and hence creating & consolidated India cperation for all of its unlisted activity in EPC and construction
segments,

The Court approval has been filed with Registtar of Companies in India on March 28, 2013.

On March 29, 2013 the shareholders of OGCC KazStroyService JSC have resolved to transfer its 140% subsidiary
KSSIPL (30,618,500 shares of INR 10 each) in favour of XSS Hungary as gift deed,

Financial position and results

The result posted by KSS Group for 2012 signifies its dominant positio in the Kazakhstan snd Indian market
despite global, slowdown and looming Europesn debt crisis. Consolidated revenue of the Group stood at
USD 924,155 thousand for 2012 while Profit after Tax for the Group is USD 122,787 thousand, The revenue from
Kazakhstan attributed to around 52% of the gross revenue, while Indian subsidiaties contribited to around 48% to
the overall Group Revenue. Capital Expenditure for the group stood at around USD 40,203 thousand.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Future Qutlook

Having survived the volatile economic environment which has persisted since 2008, the Group is geared for growth
in the coming year as it has evolved from a mere pipeline construction company to a major EPC player. Overal}
investmenis in the oil and gas industry as weli as infrastructure and industrial segment in both Kazakhstan and India -
are predicted to increase though there are uncertainties with regards to global economic scenario which may have an
impact over timeffame of approval of planned investments and award of new contracts. Market prospecis are
expected 10 be better than previous year as Kazakh economy continues to perform well and there is consistent push
by the Indian government on infrastructure front. K$S Group with its large fieet of modern construction equiptnent
along with established track record is well-positioned to take full advantage of new opporfunities in the segments it
operates.

The Group has been awarded a total of over 598 milion USD worth of new orders for the year 2013,

Risk management

K38 Group maintains an adequate system of risk management based on rsk identification, assessment and
mitigation and control measures. The risk management pracess is an integral part of management model and used to
ensure the effectiveness and efficioncy of group business processes, For details please see the paragraph on
Financial Risk Management in the notes (Nofe 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KazStroyService Gilobal B.Y,

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the 12 month perifod, ended December 31, 2012

Financial Statements

In thousands of USD Note 2012 201}
Revenue 4 914,155 1,026,623
Cost of revenue 5 {751,670) {505,130)
Gross profit 1 ABS 117493
General snd administeative expenses & (50,383} (85,980)
Loss on disposal of property, plent and equipment (84) {481)
Impaicment (logses) / reversals, net ] {6,603) 4)
Bad debis Provision 8 (3,341) {2,338)
Other income b 1,849 3,517
Other expenses g £1,966) (558)
Operating profit 111,987 31,649
Share of profit of associates 14 5416 19,525
Finance Income 7 85,508 14,032
Finance cost 7 (63,830) (189,320)
Foreign exchange gain, net 1,467 3.805
Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense 140,518 (120,309)
Income tax expenses 11 {17,731 (24,555)
Profit/ (Loss} for the year 122,787 (144 864)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parents; 122,349 {147,538)
Non-controlling interests of subsidiaries 438 2,674
Weighted average number of erdinary shares for hasic

earnings per share 2,000,080 1,916,667
Earnings per share 0,06 (0,08)

Basic and diluled earnings per share

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated  finuncial statesments,
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KazStroyService Globgl B.V. Financial Statememts

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Yor the 12 month period, ended December 31,2012

In thousands af USD 2012 2011

Profit/ (Lass) for the year 122,787 {144,864)

Other comprehensive incarme / (loss)

Exchange difference on trenslation of foreipn operations (5,305) {14,111}
Income tax effect (1,768) (4,703)
(7,073) {i8,814)
Revaluation of machinery and equipment 39,506 -
Income tax effect (8,891} _
Share o{ other cemprehcnsi\'fe income of essociates {pain on 1197 _
revaluation of plant and equipment) !
az,212 -
Other comprehensive income / {loss) for the year, tiet of tax 25,139 {18,814)
"Fatal comprehensive income for the year, net of tex 147,916 (163,678}
Attributable to:
Attsibutable to share holder of the perent 147,787 {164,930)
Nor-controfling interest of the subsidiaries 438 2,674
Translation diffetence to non-controlling interest of subsidigries {299) {1,422
147,926 {163,678}

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KazStroyService Global B.V, Financial Statements
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2012
In thousands of USD Note 2012 2011
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 12 202,899 193,888
Intangible assets 13 29,595 10,962
Ihvestments 14 81,806 85,366
Prepayiment for equipment 62 4,816
Other non-current asssts 13 38,716 8,371
Deferred tax asscts 1 4,784 1,839
Long-term bank deposits i7 1,454 1,564
358,316 307,306
Current assefs:
Inventories s 54,132 37414
Accounts receivoble 19 199,169 235,559
Unbilied revenue 395,601 344,462
Advances paid 20 53,000 48,145
Prepuld income tax 18,237 15,245
Prepaid taxes other than income tax 23 12,661 13,982
Loans to related partiez 24 - 1,308
Other current assets 22 6,125 14,954
Financial sssets at fair value through profit and loss 23 535,000 485,000
Short-term deposits 25 27,060 8,291
Restricted cash 26 701 1,064
Cash and cash equivalents 26 37,633 19,627
1,339,409 1,260,051
Total assets 1,698,715 1,567,357
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at December 31, 2012
In thousands of USD Note 2012 2011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:
Share capital 27 26 26
Share premium 27 28,686 28,686
Reteined eamnings §79,819 553,098
Revaluation reserve 27,849 -
Translation difference 27 (37,866) (31,092}
Equity atiributable to shareholder of parent 698,505 550,718
Non-controlting interest a7 13,761 13,637
_ 712,266 564,355
Non-current labilities:
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 28 259,465 1582
Bonds payable kiid 74,898 -
Finance lease payable 3 2415 4,415
Other non-current liabilities 32 65443 65,821
Employee benefits fiability 33 1,927 2,296
Deferred tax liabilitics 1 _ 19,286 15,949
' 423,434 120,043
Current Habllities:
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 28 155,888 459,496
Current portion of notes payable 29 4,943 8,083
Current portion of firance lease payable 3l 1,986 2,042
Currentt portion of honds payabie 3o 2,767 -
Loans from ather entities 34 116 124
Trade accounts payable 35 154,905 166,971
Advances from customers 36 164,310 166,684
Deferred revenue 37 6,321 15414
Curmrent income tax payable 4,904 1,736
Taxes payable other than income tax 33 30,0611 22,715
Current portlon of employes benefits lability 33 302 231
Other cuzrent liabilities 39 _ 35572 39463
563,025 882,959
Total equity and liabilities 1,698,725 1,567,357

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Staternents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the 12 mouth period, ended December 31, 2012

Share of
Attributable non-
Share Share Retained  Translation (5] controtied Total
I thousands of USD NOIeS  Copitsl  premium  Esmings  diffrence U™V ghurchoiders  shoctioer cquily
of the parent s for
subsidiaries
At December 31, 2010 23 28686 71,677 (13,700 - 726,686 9,319 736,005
(144,864
{Loss} /Profit for the yesr - - (147,538 . _ (147,538) 2674 N
Other comprehensive loss - - . {17,392} - {17,392} {1.422)  (i8,814)
Total comprehensive (163,678
(loss) income - —  (147,538)  {17,392) - (164,930) 1,252 3
Acguisition of subsidiary 27 - - - - - - 4,969 4,969
Effect of shares
contribution 27 3 - (96) - - (93) - {93)
Purchase of additional
shares in Petron
Engineering Construction
Limited 27 - - (10,%45) - - (10,945} (1.678) (12,623)
Dividends of subsidiariex
paid to non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - - (225) (225)
At Becember 31, 2011 26 28,686 553,098 (31,092} - 556,718 13,637 564,358
(Loss) /Profit for the year - - {22,349 - - 122,349 438 122,787
Revaluation reserve - - - - 31,015 31,015 ~ 31015
Share of other
comprehensive income of
associste - - 1,197 1,197 - 1,194
Other comprchensive loss - - ~ _ {6.914) - {6,774) (299)  (7.073)
Total comprehensive
(s} income - - 122,349 {6,774) 32,212 147,187 139 147926
Contribution in cash - - - - - - 15 75
Depreciation transfer for
Plant and equipment - - 4,372 - 4,372 - - -
Dividends of subsidiaries
paid to non-controlling
sharcholders ~ - - - - - {90y (30)
At December 31, 2012 26 28686 679819  (37,866) 27,840 698,505 13,761 712266

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part af these consolidated financial stal,
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KazStrayService Global B.V.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the 12 month period, ended December 31, 2012

Financial Statements

In thousands of USD Notes 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities;
(L.oss)/ Profit before income fex expense 149,518 {i20,309)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 12,13 38,586 37,125
Loss on disposs] of property, plant and equipment 84 48}
Amortization of discount of loans to refated parties - (576}
Amortization of discount of bonds payable 61 10
Impairment losses 8 9,944 4342
Interest expenses 7 43,144 48,467
Financial guamntees {13 -
Interest income 7 {748) (1,307)
Changes in provision on warranty works {919} (14,888}
Changes In provision on employee benefits 33 4 3]
Amortization of discount on ather financia! sssels and
liabilities 878 (1,306)
Income from dividends (15,000) -
Change in fair value of financial instruments 23 {50,000) 130,000
Profit in participation {n joint ventures 14 (5,416} (19,525)
Provision for constructive obligation 39 1,988 5815
Accrued future fosses 1,153 875
Unreatized foreipn exchange pain net (5404} 2 826
Operating cash flows before working cepital changes 158,860 70,041
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 1,816 (13,374)
Accounts receivable 29,885 (41,639)
Prepaid taxcs other than income tax 5996 {4,887)
Advanees paid 5472) {24,660)
Unbitled revenues (58,219) {152,521}
Restricted cash 252 (1,065)
Other current assets 8,379 4,866
Other non-current assets {31,762) (1,737
{Increase) / decrease in operating labilities
Trade accounts payable 6,072) 81,288
Advances from customers 3676 {67,589)
Deferred revenue {8,881) (4,821)
Taxes payable other then income tax 7876 15,693
Employee benefits linbility {470) 25
Other curvent liabiilties {3,671) (2.055)
Other non-current Habilities {1,184) (9,979}
Cash {used in) / generated from operating activities 09,003 {152.414)

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Director

Director

Director

Director
Director

Director

i1

#

AR Warrls

\ - //h"
@)ﬁ j//"’ _‘/,:/

A, Tiku //

A Balakrishnan

L
LS D, Overbeck
F. Oosthoek ™ *

g KYOUNL Accountants 149
gﬁﬁﬁ{d for i'dj,‘ﬂNI ition purposes Omly




KazStroyService Global B.V, Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the 12 month period, ended December 31, 2012

f T

EE—

.1

In thousands of USD _Notes 2012 2011
Income tax paid (25,156) {24,807y
Dividends received 23,911 -
Foreign tax paid (248) {257)
Interest paid {41,045) (20,168}
Net cash (used in) / provided by operating activities 56,465 {197.646)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property plant and equipment 12 {17,824) (43,396}
Prepayment for future investment 16 - (7,033)
Payment for investment in other companies 1) {12,826)
Purchase of intangible assets 13 (20,518) (11,680)
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment 2,428 9,835
Proceeds from interest on short-term deposit 9294 940
Repayment / {investment) in deposits (net) (8,816} (7,101)
Net cash used in investing activities (43,737) {71,261
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuing shares 27 75 5,763
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries 27 (99) (225)
Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings (702,257) (384,541)
Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings 636,192 578,156
Bonds issue 95,693 -
Payment of notes {2,988) -
Repayment of bonds payable (20,119) {20.461)
Issue of notes - 3,280
Loans provided 1o related parties 24 - (995)
Loans repaid by related parties 24 1,301 4,631
Repayment of finance lease (excluding interest) (1,953) (2,762)
Net cash provided by / {used in} financing activities 5,854 182,846
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 18,582 {86,061)
Lffect of foreign exchange difference (576) (1,390)
Cash and cash equivalents at t_!_:e' beginning of the period 26 19,627 107,078
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 26 37,633 19,627

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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KazSiroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the 12 month period, ended December 31,2032

2012 non-cash transactions inclede:

non-cash offset of taxes of KSS K2 amounting to USD 1,595 thousand.

2011 non-cash transactions include:

nont-cash additions to property, plant and equipment amounted to USD 7,117 thousand and
comprised equipment received under sale and leaseback transaction {(Note 31,

non-cash restructuring of Claremont’s loan granted to the Group of USD 24,000 thousand {Note
28).

The notes on pages 14 through 71 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KazStroyService Globai B.V. Financia) Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

1. GENERAL

KazStroyService Global B.V. (hereinafter referred ss “the Company”, “the Parent™) was incorporated as a limited
linbility company organized under the laws of the Netherlands on February 13, 2009,

As at December 31, 2012, the major owners and the wlimate parents of the Company are KazStroyService
infrastructure B.V., & company incorporated under the Law of Netherlands with registered office at Strawinskylaan 411,
1077XX Amsterdam, the Netherlands, Fraseli Investments Birl, a company incorporated nnder the Law of Luxembourg
with registered office at 65 Boulevard, Gr, Duchesse Charlotte, 1331 Luxembourg, and AT Holdings Europe BV, a
company incorporated under the Law of Netherlands with registered office at Strawinskylaan 411, 1077XX
Amsterdem, the Netherlands.

The Group’s principal activity is to undertake and execute engineering, procurement and construction projects through
its operating subsidiaries in Kazekhstan and India.

As at December 31, 2012, the Company has sixteen subsidiaries subject to consolidation and several associates subject
1o equity method accounting (hersinafier referred as the “Group™),

The Group’s registered office is located at Strawinskylaan 411, 1077XX Amsterdam, and the Netherlands,

These consolidated financial statements (“the Consolidated Financial Statements™} were authorized for issue by Board
of Directors of the Group on April 11, 2013,

Operating environment
Operating subsidiaries of the Group are located in Kazakhstan and India.

Kazakhstar continues to expand at robust pace and economic reforms and development of legal, tax and regulatory
frameworks as required by a market economy are changing to keep up with the pace in economy. The future stability of
the Kazakhstan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and the effectiveness of economic,
financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government,

The Kazikhstan economy is vulnerable to market downturns and economic slowdowns elsewhere in the world. The
global financial crisis of recent years has resalted in capital markets instability, significant deterioration of liquidity in
the banking sector, and tighter credit conditions within Kazakhstan, while the Kazakhstan Government has introduced a
range of stabifization measures aimed at providing liquidity to Kazakhstan banks and companies.

India’s economy continues to expend at a robust pace. Currently, high inflation and ensuing monetary tightening affact
investment spending and industrial growth. However, India remains relatively well-placed according to a long-term
fundamental point of view. Domestic demand serves as the Indian economy’s primary driver and helps insulate it from
the effect of global developments, High foreign exchange reserves and low external debt provide further cushioning to
deal with the global downturns. Strong domestic consumption and investment helps bolster the economy now and in the
future.

While management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Group’s business in the
current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas described above could negatively affect the Group's
results and financial position in & manner not currently determinable.
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KazStroyService Global B.Y. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

i, GENERAL (continued)
Group structure
As at December 31, 2012 the Group’s subsidiaries comprised of the following:

Ownership  Ownership

{effective)  (gffective)

Name Place of incorporation 2012 2011
ISC OGCC “KazStroyService”, (K55 KZ) Kazakhsian 100% 100%
Engineering Procwrement Services LLP,, (EPS) Kazakhstan 100% 100%
KazBtroyService Giobal Engineering B.V., (KS§ Global Eng) Netherlands 100% 100%
KazStroyService Lid., (KSS Litd) UK 100% 100%
KazStroyService Engineering Ltd., (KSS Engineering UK) UK 100% 100%
KazStroyService Management Pte., (XSS Management) Singapare 100% 100%
KazStroyService Investment Pie. Ltd., (KSS Investment) Singapore 108% 100%
KazStroy Service Hungary KR, (KSS Hungary) Hungary 100% H00%
Petran Civil Enginsering Pvt Ltd,, (PCEPL) India 100% 106%
KazStroyService Infrastructure India Pvt Ltd, India 100% 100%
AmrithaSharanya Leasing & [nvestments Pvt Ltd., (Amritha) India 180% 100%
Petron Investments Pvi Ltd., (PIPL) India 100% 100%
SRA Finance and Investments Pvt Ltd., (SRA) India 100% 100%
KazStroyService Engineering India Private Limited, (KEIPL) India 100% 100%
Bhubaneshwar Expressways Private Limited, (BEPL) India T4% 4%
Petron Engineering Construction Limited, (PECL) India 72,47% 72,47%

As at Decemnber 31, 2012 the Group’s associates comprised of the following:

Ownerslip  Ownership
{effective)  (effective)

Name of entity Place of Incorporation 2011 2011
JSC PSN Kazstroy JVC (“PSN KazStroy™ Kazakhstan 50% 50%
Keppel Kazakhstan LLP (“Keppel™) Kazakhstan 50% 50%
ISKER KazStroyService LLP, (JSKER) Keeakhstan 50% 50%
Pipeline Service LLP Kazakhstan 50% WA

Pipelite Service LLP was established in 2012 and had no material operations as of December 31, 2012,
For the Parent, its subsidiaries and associates the financial vear are identical to cafendar year.

Restricticn on dividends

Certain restrictions exist for the ability of subsidiaries to transfer finds to the parent in the form of cash dividends. In
Kazakhstan the amount of dividends to be transferred should not exceed the owner’s equity. In India, fhe companies
have to transfer predetermined percentage of profits (not exceeding ten percent) to reserves before declaring dividend.

In addition, the Directors of the Group must give their consent prior to the execution of a decision of the Annual
General Mesting of Shareholders to distribute profit or reserves.

Going concern

These consolidated financial staterents have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the realization of

assets and the satisfaction of lisbilities in the normal course of business. The management believes that no events or
circumstances affect the normal business course of the Group,
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Finencial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decernber 31, 2012

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as deseribed in the
accounting policies and the notes to these consolidated financial statements. The Group maintains its accounting records
in US Dollar (“USD”). All values in these consolidated fivancial statements are rounded to the nearest thousands,
except when otherwise indicated,

Statement of compliance

‘These Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), as endorsed by the European Union.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1FRS requires the wse of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to excreise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or arcas where assutnptions and estimates are
significant to the financial staternents are disclosed (Notes 19, 20, 27, 23).

Common control combinations

A business combination is 2 “coramon contro! combination™ if the combining enfities are ultimately controlied by the
same parties both before and after the cembination, and the common control iz not transitory. Business combinations
involving entities under common control are outside the scope of IFRS 3 and there is no specific gnidance.
Accordingly, the management should use its judgment to develop an accounting policy that is relevant and reliable, in
accordance with IAS 8.10-12. In the view of the Management, the televant and reliable accounting policy for common
contro] transactions within the Group is a pooling of interests-type method.

Consolidation method for commion control combinations
Subsidiaries are consolldated under a pooling of interest-type method:

¢  The assets end liabilities of the subsidiaries are recorded at book value, with related adjustments to achieve
uniform accounting policies,

¢ Intangible assets and contingent liabilities are recognized only to the extent that they were recoguized by the
subsidiary in accordance with the applicable IFRS (in particular IAS 38),

*  No goodwill is recorded. The difference between the Company’s cost of investment and the subsidiary’s equity
s presented separately in equity on consolidation (reserve),

®  Any non-vontrolling interest is measured as proportionate share of the book values of the related assets and
liabilities and adjusted to achieve uniform accounting policies,

* Comparative amounts arc restated as if the combination had taken place at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.

Inter-cornpany transactions, balances and unrealized geins on transactions between subsidiaries are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are afso efiminated but considered as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

g G Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Globai B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Consolidation vutside of the Group

Subsidiaries are {ully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies, Al intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
in fuil. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a Joss of control, is accounted for as an equity tratsaction. If
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
e Derecognizes the carrying amonnt of any non-controlling interest,

= Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in squity,

+  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received,

s Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained,

o Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss,

*  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit
or loss or retained carnings, as appropriate,

Investment in associnies

The Group's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the
Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating fo the associate is included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has
been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes and
discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity, Unrealized gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The share of profit of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. This is the profit
attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefare profit after.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same rcporting period as the Group. Where Recessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and
recognizes the amount in the ‘share of profit of associates’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retaining investroent at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recogrized in the statement of comprehensive income,

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements arc presented in USD (“presentation currency™), whick is also the Parent
company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group in tumn has its own functional currency, which could be
different from Group presentation currency. The results and financial position of these Group entities are translated into
presentation currency of the Group as per below,

i T& Accauntants LLP
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KazStroyService Giobal B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Transactions and balastces

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate roling af the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Any exchange gains and losses arising from assets and liabilities
denominated In foreign currencies subsequent to the date of the underlying transaction are credited or charged to the
statement of comprehensive income, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions, Nofi-monetary assets measured
at the fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Subsidiaries

The results and financial position of the Group's subsidiacles (which do not have the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency gre translated into the presentation
cumency as follows:

®  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
reporting date,

» income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates
{unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are franslated at the rate on the dates of the transactions),
and

» all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of other comprehensive income or
foss in the equity.
Exchange rates

The following official fareign exchange rates against the UISD have been used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements:

Deeember 31, 2012 Average for 20012 December 31, 2011 Averape 2011
Kazakh Tenge (KZT) 150.74 149.11 148.4 146.62
Euro (EUR) 0.7567 0.7778 0.7740 0.7183
Russian Ruble (RUR) 30.39 3LoY kY AL 29.68
Indian Rupee (INR) 54,78 5349 5327 45,67
Hungerian forint (HUF) 220.93 225.37 240.68 200.46

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
Changes in accounting policy
£45 18 Property, Plant and equipment

The Group reassessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of certain classes
of property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. The Group has previously measured all property, plant and
equipment using the cost model as set out in 1AS 16.30, whereby after initial recognition of the assels classificd as
property, plant and equipment, were carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Josses.

On I January 2012 the Group elected to change the method of accounting for plant and equipment classified in
property, plant end equipment. After initia] recognition, the Group uses the revaluation model, whereby plant and
equipment will be measured at fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment fosses.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Changes in accounting policy (continued)
IAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment {continued)

The Group applied the exemption in [AS 8, which exempts this change in accounting policy from retrospective
application and extensive disclosure requirements.

Stondards Issued but niot yet effective

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of Issuance of the Group’s financial statements
are listed below. The listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have
an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date. The Group intends to adopt
these standards and interpretations when they become effective,

* [FRS7 Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures — Qffsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities2, effective 1
Janwary 2013

®  IFRS 9 Financial Instruments2, effective 1 January 2015

*  IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements2, effective | Jarmary 2013

& IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemenis2, effective I January 2013

e IFRS i2 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?, effective I January 2013
e IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement2, effective I January 2013

® 145 ] Presentation of Financial Statemenis — Presentation of ftems of Other Comprehensive Income, effective
P July 2012

o 148 12 fncome Toaxes — Recovery of Tax Assets

s [AS 19 Employee Benefits (emended), effective 1 Jamary 2013

»  [AS 27 Separate Financial Statements2, effective I January 2013

o 45 28 Investments in Assaciates and Jaint Ventures?, effective 1 January 2013

* 148 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities2, effective 1
Jarnmary 2014

¢ IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine2, effective 1 January 2013
s Annual Improvements to IFRS (Issued May 2012)2, effective 1 January 2013
LFRS 7 Financigl Instruments: — Disclosures- Enhanced Derecognition Disciosure Requivements

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred, but pot derecognized, to
enable the user of the Group’s financial statements to understand the relationship with those assets that have been
derecognized and their associated liabilities, In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about the entity’s
continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable user to evaluate the nature of, and risk associated with, such
involvement. The amendment becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those financial years.The Group does not have any assets with these characteristics so there has been ro
effect on the presentation of its financial statements.

148 1 Financial Statement Presentation — Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income (OCI). Items that
could be reclessified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or
settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified, The amendment affects
presentation only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance, The amendment becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION {continued)

145 12 Income Taxes ~ Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair valve, The
amendrent ntroduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value
mode! in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale.
Furthermare, it introduces the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the
revaluation model in TAS 16 always be measured on & sale basis of the asset, The amendment becomes effective for
annval periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary 2012, but has no effect on the equity’s performance and Group’s
financial position because the Group does not have non-depreciable assets that are measured using revaluation mode! in
IAS 1.

1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendment)

The IASB has issued numerous amendments to IAS 19, These range from fundamental changes such as removing the
corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
Group is currently assessing the full fmpact of the amendments. The revised standard will have no impact on the
Group's financial position and performance, The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or afier
¥ January 2013.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaties,
jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. [The revised standard will have no impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance.] The revised standard becomes effective for financial years beginning
on or sfter 1 January 20134,

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to
associates, The revised standard will have no impact on the Group's financial position and performancs. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

145 32 Financial Instrumenis: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off°. The amendments also
clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetiing criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems)
which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These amendments are not expected to impact the
Group’s financial position or performance and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014,

IERS 7 Financlal Instruments: Disclosures Offselting Financial Assets and Financial liabllities:

These amendments require an entity 1o disclose information about rights of set-off and related arrangements {such as
collateral agreements). The aire Is to provide users of financial statements with information about the effect of snch
rights and arrangements on the entity's financial position, The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial
instruments that are sot off in accordance with JAS 32. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments
that are subject to an enforceable master netting atrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are
set-off in accordance with IAS 32_ These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning en
or after | January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs’ work on the replacement of 1AS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financiai assets and labilities as defined in IAS 39. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The completion of this project is expected in 2012. The adoption
of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets,
but will potentially have no impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture. The standard
is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION {continied)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 consolidated and separate financial statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in sic-12 consolidation - special putpose entities,

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are
controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS
27. Based on the preliminary analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2G13IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemenis

IFRS 11 replaces 1AS 3! Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs} using
proportionate consolidation, Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the
equity method. The application of this new standard will not impact the financial position of the Group. This standard
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2613.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities

IFRS 12 tncludes alf of the disclosures that were previously in 1AS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as
well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and 1AS 28. These disclosures reldte to an entity's
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also
required but have no Impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. This standard becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013,

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair valye measurements. IFRS 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fait value under IFRS when
fair value is required or permitted. The Group is currently mssessing the impact that this standard will have on the
financial position and performance. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013,

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in Produciion Phase of a Surface Mining,

This interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity, doring the production
phase of the mine, The interpretation addresses the accounting for the benefit from the stripping activity. The
interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2013. The new interpretation will not have
an impact on the Group,

Improvements to IFRSs {Issued May 2012)

Tn May 2012, the JASB issued the 2009-2011 cycle improvements to its standards and interpretations, primarily with a
view to removing inconsistencies and clerifying wording, These improvements will not have an impact on the Group,
but include:

¢ 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the difference between voluntary additionai comparative
information and the minimum required comparative information.

= IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that mest the
definition of property, plant end equipment are not inventory,

¢ AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders
are accounted for in accordance with IAS 12,

*  1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies the requirements in 1AS 34 relating to segment information for total
assets and liabilities for each reportable segment to enthance consistency with the requirements in IFRS 8,
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KazStroyService Global B.Y. A Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the repotting date, However, ancertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustiment to the carrying amount of the asset or lisbility affected in future petiods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year sre discussed below:

Usefil lives of items of property, plant and equeipment

The Group assesses the remaining useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment at least at each financial year-
end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting
sstimate in accordance with JAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and i5 written down to ifs recoverable amount. In asssssing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the assets,

Trupairment of non-financial assets (contimued)

The determination of impairment of property, plant and equipment involves the use of estimates that include, but are not
limited to, the cavse, timing and amount of impairment, Impairment is based on a large number of factors, such as
changes in restructuring process, expectations of growth in the industry, changes in the futurs availability of finuncing,
technological obsolescence, discontinuance of service, current replacement costs and other changes in circumstances
that indicate impairment existy, The determination of the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit involves the use
of estimates by management. Methods used to determine the value in use include discounted cash flow-based methods,
which require the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and, also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. These estimates, including
the methodologies used, may have a material impact on the fair value and ultimately the amount of eny property, plant
and equipment impairment. During 2012, the Group recognized impairment of property plant and squipment amounting
to USD 227 theusand (2011; USD 4 thousand)(Note 12},

Taxation

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future
taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of
existing contractusl agreements, differences arising between the actua! results and the assumptions made, or future
changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax fncome and expense already recorded, The
Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authoritics
of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority, Such differences of interpretation may avise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective Group's domicile.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2. BAEIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Significant accounting judgments and estimates {continned)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all allowances and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
temporary differences and business nature of such expenses will be proved. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Employee benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits as well as the present value of the other
employee benefils obligation is determined using actuarlal valuations. The sctuarial valuation involves mzking
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return of assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and fisture
pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term natuere, g
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds
in Kazakhstan and India, The mortality rate i5 based on publicly available mortality tables for Kunzakhstan and India
{Note 33},

Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for Kazakhstan and India.

Falr value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial Habilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assnmptions sbout these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Warranties

Under provisions of construction contracts, the Group is obligated to rectify construction defects identified by a
customer subsequent to construction acceptance. Such warranties generally extend for a maximum period of two years
after completion of the project. To ensure the performance under the warranties a payment of generally 5% of the
contract value is secured via bank guarantee through and until the conclusion of the watraoly period. Based on an
analysis of completed contracts, where the warranty period has not yet expired, management assesses the probability of
outflow of resources in connection with the fulfilment of warranty obligations. As at December 31, 2012 the Group
accrued warranty provision of USD 5,646 thousand (2011: USD 7,371 thousand) (Note 32, 39). The Group also
mitigates the risk of incurring significant losses due to rectifying defects by insuring its potential liabilities.

Reventue recognition

The Group recognizes revenues according to percentage of completion of individual contract of construction work,
which requires estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion is estimated by reference to the actusl
costs incurred over the total budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is, aiso, estimated by management.

Due fo the nature of the activity undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the activity is entered into and
the date at which the activity is completed usually fafl into different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget prepared for each contract &s the coniract
progresses. Where the actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract costs are more than expected, an
impairment loss may arise. Summary of information for uncompleted construction contract is disclosed in Note 40,
Management believes that in their knowledge all estimates regarding construction contracts are adequate and full,
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KazStroyService Global B.V, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated fmpairment losses, For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilitics of the acquire are assigned to those units. Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
and part of the operation within thet unit is disposed of the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill dispesed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained,

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all afiached
conditions will be complied with. When the grants relates to an exist expense item, It will be recognized as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to corpensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected usefu! life of the related asset,

Property, plant and equipment

The Company has changed its accounting policy for plant and equipment from cost model to revalnation model from
January 1, 2612,

Therefore property, plant and equipment except plant and equipment is cerried at cost, which comprises its purchase
price and any costs direotly attributable to bringing it into working condition and ready for its intended use, less
accumulated depreciation and any acoumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the properly plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive inceme as
incurred.

Plant and equipment is carried at fafr value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
less impairment losses recognized at the date of revaluation.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited 1o the asset revaluation reserve in equity.
However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the
increase is recognised in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing suzrplus on the same asset recognised in the as set revaluation reserve,

An apnual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the assets” original cost.
Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amonnt of the
mssets and the nef amount is restated to the revalued amount of the assets. Upoen disposal, any revaluation reserve
relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained carmings.
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KazStroyService Global B,V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on assets under construction and those not placed in service commences from the date the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciaticn is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives set out in the following table:

Number of vears

Buildings and censtruction iBto 50
®  Buidings 50

o Tratlery 10
Flant and eguipment Sto20
v Consiruction devises 57

& Tractors and excavalars 7-9

+  Pipe-Jayers 2

s Eleclrical equipment (generators ete.} 20
Vehieles 715
s Cars 7-12

¢+  Buoses 9-10

= Trocks 16-15
Others 2.7

The useful Jives and residval values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually and, where applicable,
adjustments are made on a prospective basis. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted
for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 “accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors”, These estimates may have a material impact on the amounts of the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment and on depreciation expenses recognized in statement of comprehensive income. At January I,
2612 the Company reassessed the remaining usefil lives of certain property, plant and equipment within ranges
disclosed above.

The property, plant end equipment purchased orfand menufactured for the use on & particular project and to be
transferred to the customer, or to be disposed after the project completion, ate depreciated over the duration of the
project.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from ifs use or disposal. Any pain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Land is measured at historical cost less any impairment losses. Land is not depreciated.

Construction-in-progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized as a consolidated component of property, plant and equipment. On
completion, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category. Construction-in-progress ic not
depreciated.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or ptoduetion of an asset that necessatily takes &
snbstantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
casts that an entity incurs in connection with the botrowing of funds,

/
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KazStroyService Globa! B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decembsr 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Concession intangible and financind assets

The Group constructs infrastructure (construction services) used to provide a public service and operates and maintains
that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements include infrastructure used in
a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life. These arrangements are accounted for based
on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the Group receives a right (a
license) to charge users of the public ssrvice, The financial asset rnodel is used when the Group has an unconditional
confractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services. When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined to
account separately for each component.

»  An intangible asset is measured at the falr value of consideration transferred to acquire the asset, which isthe
fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered. The intangible
asset is amortised over its expected useful life ina way that reflects the patiern in which the asset’s economic
benefits are consumed by the entity, starting from the date when the right to operate starts to be used (for
example, in a toll road concession the Group uses the number of cars that use the road}. Based an these
principles, the intangible asset is amortised in line with the actual usage of the specific public facility, with a
maximbm of the diration of the concession.

¢ Inthe financial asset model, the amount due from the grantor meets the definition of a receivable which is
measured at fair value. It is subsequently measured at amortised cost. The ameunt initially recognised plus the
cumulative interest on that amount is caleulated using the effective interest method.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the financial asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software and service concession related rights in accordance with IFRIC 12,
Intangible assets are recorded at cost, less accumulated amortization, Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over & period of five years, Service concession rights related to IFRIC 12 are amortized on a straight-line over the
operation period. Amortization is recorded within general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period to which it relates. Intengible assets are measured at costs less accumulated
depreciation and less acounulated impairment.

Inventories

Inventaries are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is assigned by using the
first-in first-out (FIFO) cost formula. The cost of waork-in-progress comprises raw materials, divect labor, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal operatiog capacity),

Net realizabie value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
{(if any) and the estimated costs necessary te make the sale,

L
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KazStroyService Giobal 8.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financiz} assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 30 are classified as financial assets at fair valve through profit or lass, loans
and receivebles, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or a5 derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate, The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the casc of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way purchases) are recognized on the trade date, ie, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term deposits, trade and other
receivables, loans and receivables.

Subsequent measurenient

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or joss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets are classified as beld for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria as defined by JAS 39. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance cost in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value. These embedded
derivatives are measured 2t fair value with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in the staternent
of comprehensive income. Reassessment only oceurs, if there is a change in the tetms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required,

Trade and other recefvables

Trede and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount jess allowance made for uncollectibitity of these
recefvables. An allowance for uncollectibility Impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there js
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
recejvables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount,
being the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the market mate of interest for similar borrowers. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade and other receivables, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to the statement of comprehensive incoms,

In 2012 recovery of amounts previously written off was in the amount of USD 1,948 thousand {2011: KZT nil), At
December 31, 2012 the net charge of allowances for uncollectibility for trade and other receivables amounted to USD
1,492 thousand (2011: USD 2,171 thousand) (Notes 8, 19, 22).

Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Global B.V, Financia! Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash with banks and cash equivalents, Cash eguivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the purposs of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above,

Financial Habilities

Initlal recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of JAS 39 are classified as financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designuted as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

Financial linbilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans, borrowings, bonds payable, finance
leases, and financial guarantee contracts af fajr value less directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial Hablfities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafis, loans and borrowings, bonds
payable, finance leases, and finaneial guarantee contracts,

Subsequent meusuremenyt
The measurement of financial liabilities depends en their classification as follows:
Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are Initially recognised at cost, which is the Bir value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs, After initial recognition, intersst bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses ave recogrised in the vonsolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the labiiities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

Trade and other accounts payable

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be pald
in the future for poods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Financtal guaraniee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a4 payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs becanse the specified debtor fails to make & payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument, Financial guarantee confracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that zre directly attributable to the issuance of the Buarantes. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the present obligation at the reporting date and the
amount recognized less cumulative amortization,

Corporale bonds

Corporate bonds are non-capable registered coupon bonds that are at fair value. Corporate bonds are initially recognised
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After injtial
recognition, corporate bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, Gains
and fosses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the fabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended December 31, 2012

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financiai liabilities {confinued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on z net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the Habilities simuitaneously,

Fair valne of financial instruments

The fair value of finencial insteisments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for fransaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair
valoe of another fnstrutnent that is substantially the same; discounted cash fiow analysis or other valuation mode]s.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that & financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and enly if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the Injtial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated, Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficul , Gefault or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probebility that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and
where observable data indicate that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or econemic conditions that correlate with dafaults,

Financial assets earried af amortized cosi

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial sssets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment,

If there Is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured s the
difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present vaiue of the cstimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest tate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment foss is the ctirrent effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the fiture cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the consolidated income statement, Loans
together with the associated allowancs are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
coflatera] has been realized or has been transferred fo the Greup. I, in 2 subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss js increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If 2 future write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the consolidated income statement.

-~
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KazStroyService Global B.V, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

& the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

» the Group has transferred fts rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows In full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through arrangement and either (z)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the agset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retaimed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, & new asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The tranzferred asset and the asscciated liability re
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of & guarantee over the transferved asset i mesasured at the lower of the
original carrying emount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the tiability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When
an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recogaition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

{Construction contracts

Coniract costs

Contract costs are recognized when incurred. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognized only to the extent of confract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome
of a contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognized over the period of the contract, When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenus, the expected loss is recognized and expensed immediately,

The Group uses the *“percentage of completion method’® to determine the appropriate amount to be recognized in a
given period. Stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to estimated total contract costs. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future activity on a
contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the stage of completion. They are presented as work-in-
progress in case it is probable that they will be recovered,

Contract costs comprise costs that relate directly to the specific contract, costs that are attributable to contract activity in
general and can be allocated to the contract and sich other costs that are specifically chargeable to the customer under
the contract terms. The contract cost includes direet project costs, consisting of direct payroll costs, materials, costs of
subcontracted work, other direct costs, rental charges and maintenance costs for the equipment used. The progress ofa
project is determined on the basis mentioned in precedin g paragraph,

Operating expenses

Expenses are accounted for at the time the actual flow of the related goods or services occurs, regardiess of when cash
or its equivalent is paid, and are reported in the consolidated financial statements in the period to which they relate,
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Finaneial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31,2012

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)
Construction contracts (continued)
Revenire recognivion

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Group
and revente can be reliably measured,

Revenue from construction services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs. When the percentage of contract execution cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only
to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable,

The Group has primarily fixed price construction contracts, which in some cases may be subject to cost escalation
clauses. The contract revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is affected
by & variety of uncertainties that depend on the outcome of future events, Management revises these estimates of the
contract revenue as events occur and uncertainties are resolved.

Incidental income

The Group recognizes incidental income that is not included in contract revenue as reduction to contract costs when
such revenues were generated from construction contract activities.

Unbilled revenues

When the revenues have been recognized but cannot be billed because of terms of a contract, such amounts are
separately recorded on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position as unbilled revenues. After issuance
of the bill, such unbilled revenues become trade accousts receivables.

Deferred revenues

Deferred revenues represent accounts billed to and accepted by customers in excess of the actual percentage of
completion of the projects. The deferred revenues are classified as current lisbilities when it is expected to be released
to the consolidated income statement within the next twelve months,

Concession arrangements

Fhe Group manages concession arrangements which include the construction of a road followed by & period in which
the Group maintains and services the infrastructure. This concession arrangement set out rights and obligations relative
the infrastructure and the service to be provided. For fulfilling those obligations, the Group is entitled to receive cash
from the grantor and a contractual right to charge the users of the service for significant period of time. The
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services provided;

typicslly:

e aconstruction component
»  aservice element for operating and maintenance services performed

As set out in (e) above, the right to consideration give rises to an intangible asset, or finaucial asset:

¢  revenue from the concession arrangements earned under the financial asset mode! consists of the () fair value
of the amount due from the grantor; and (ii) interest income related to the capital investment in the project.

*  revenue from the concession arrangements earned under the intangible asset model consists of the fairvalue of
tontract revenue, which s deemed to be fair value of consideration transferred to acquire the asset and
payments actuaily received from the users,

ETERNST & YOUN ounfants LLP
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KazStroyService Globa! B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date, whether the fulfiliment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right Is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially ail the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitelized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of the
lease liability 50 a5 to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful kife of the asset, However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated aver the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized zs an operating expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Group a5 a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are classified
as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term an the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
reventes in the peried in which they are earned

Employee benefit costs

Social tax

The Group pays social tax according te the current statutory requirements of the Republic of Kazakhstan and Republic
of India. Sociat tax is expensed as incurred,

Defined contribuition scheme

The Group withholds up to 10% from the salary of its employees as the employees' contribution to their designated
pension funds. Under the legislation, employecs are responsible for their retirement benefits and the Group has no
present or future obligation to further compensate its employees upon their retirement, except as provided below,

Defined benefit scheme

In accordance with the code on labor remuneration the Group provides certain long-term and retirement benefits to
certain employees (“Defined Benefit Scheme”), Long-term benefits are paid to employees upon completion of a certain
number of years of service whereas retirement benefits represent one-off payments paid upon retirement in accordance
with the Group's code of labor remuneration. Both ftems vary according to the employee's average salary and length of
service,

The Group recognizes actuarial gains and losses arising from the reassessment of the employee benefit Hability in the
period they are identified and recognizes benefit costs and obligations based on estimates determined in accordance
with IAS 19 “Employee benefits”,

The past service costs are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis aver the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits have already vested, immediately following the introduction of, or changes te, & pension
plen, past service costs are recognized immediately.

The obligation and cost of benefits under the Defined Benefit Scheme are determined using the projected unit credit
method. This method considers each year of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitfement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The cost of providing benefits is charged to the income
statement, so as to attribute the tota! benefit cost over the service lives of employees Int accordance with the benefit
fornmula of the plan. This obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate
that is similar to the interest on government bonds where the cutrency and terms of these bonds are consistent with the
currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation. The defined benefit scheme is unfimded. -
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KazStroySarvice Global B.Y. Financial Statements

NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rate and tax law used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substentially enacted by the reporting date in the Netherlands, the Republic of Kazakhstan, Hungaty, and
Republic of India The statutory corporate income tax is currently 25% in Netherlands, 20% in Kazakhstan, 19% in
Hungary and 32.45% in India, Entities in Kazakhstan are obliged to make monthly advance corporate income tax
payments,

Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tax Habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

»  Where the deferred tex liability arises from the initial recagrition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
trensaction that is rot a business combination and, at the time of the transection, affects nsither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss,

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temparary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable futurs.

Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forwaed of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

*  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or Hability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

® In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probeble that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the Hability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred
tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss s recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the income statement or directly in equity, Defarred tax
-assels and deferred tax lisbilities are offser, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Taxes other than income taxes

The Republic of Kazaihstan and India also have various operating taxes, which are sssessed on the Group’s activities,
These taxes are included as a component of general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Value added tax

The tax authorities permit the settlement of sales and purchases value added tax (VAT) on a net basis, Value added tax
recoverable represents VAT on purchases net of VAT on sales.
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Kaz8troyService Global B.V, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decemberj 31,2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has & present obligation (lega! or constructive) as a result of a past event,
when it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requited to settle the obligation
and 4 reliable estimate can be made of the value of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate, the
risks specific to the Hability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision dus to the passage of time is
recognized as a borrowing cost.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are recognized in the consalidated financial statements when they are considered probable and &
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational
decisions or has a joint control over the entity. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention s
directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

Reclassifications

Certain 2011 amounts were reclassified to conform to the presentation of the 2012 financial statements. These
reclassifications are summarized below:

in thousands of USD Amount
Consolidated Income Statement:

Certain general and administrative expenses were reclassified to cost of sales, net 15,708
Consent fee was reclassified from other expenses to finance costs, net 5,000

Consofidated statement of Cash Flows:
Consent fee was reclassified to Interest expenses and interest paid 5,600

None of the above reclassifications impacted net income or shereholders’ eguity,

o
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KazStroyService Global B.V.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

Financia! Statements

4. REVENUE

For the year, ended December 31, the revenue was derived from construction contracts for the construction of oil and
gos pipelines and other oil and gas industrial facilities and a concession arrangement for a motorway road in India,

As at December 31, 2012 some of these construction contracts were still in progress,

2812 2011
Revenue from construction contracts 892,302 1,015,683
Concesslon arrangement 31,853 10,940
924,155 1,026,623
5. COST OF REVENUE
For the years ended December 31, the cast of revenue comprised the following:

In thousends of USD 20612 2011
Materials consumed 254,049 426,537
Sub-construction services 191,719 197,698
Peyroll and related staff costs 130,034 133,854
Rent 37862 26,037
Depreciation 33,148 32,390
Taxes other than income tax 26,643 24,973
Fuet and lubricants 13,872 14,313
Transportation 12,794 13,861
Maintenance and repairs 1,045 9,196
Bank charges 9,134 0,439
Business trips 1477 6,493
Quality control services 5,633 1,788
Utilities 3,71 7.562
Security 1,867 2,295
Insurance 2,778 2,146
Communication 939 1,097
Reversal of warranty provision %19 {14,888)
Other 8,815 14,339

751,670 909,130

P Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Globsl BV, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

6 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, comprised the Tollowing:

In thowsands of USD 2012 2014
Payroll and related staff costs 22,565 37,001
Depreciation and amortization 5,440 4,735
Bank charges 4,281 4,728
Professional services 3,142 7,905
Taxes other than income tax 3,212 9419
Rent 2,691 327
Provision for constructive obligation 1,988 5815
Business trips 1,690 2,383
Insurance 1,008 1,097
Communication 809 1,152
Materials / advertising expenses £21 1,207
Utilities 391 2,737
Maintensnee and repairs 205 246
Fines and penelties 137 120
Charitles and denations 40 213
Representative expenses 21 234
Other 2,145 3,694

50,383 £5,980

7. FINANCE INCOME / (FINANCE COST)
Finance income for the years ended December 31, comprised the following:

{n thousonds of USD 2012 2611
Financial assets at fair vajue through profit and loss(Note 23) 50,000 -
Notional interest 19,760 12,725
Dividend income 15,000 -
Interest income 748 1,307
85,508 14,032
Finance cost for the years ended December 31, comprised the following:
dn thousands of USD 2052 2011
Interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings (39,258) (47,565)
Notional interest ‘ {20,625) {10,843
Inferest on bonds (3.350) (229
Interest on finance lease {451) {520)
Discount Amortization {61) {10)
Financlal assets at fair valie through profit and loss(Nate 23) - (130,000}
Other _ (45) (53)
' (63.830) (189,320)

2t M /NG Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Global B.Y,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

Financial Statements

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND BAD DEBT PROVISIONS
Impairment losses for the years ended Decemnber 31, comprised the following:

It thousands of USD 2012 201
impairment of property, plant and equipment in result of revaluation 6,376 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 227 4
6,603 4
Bad debt provisions for the year ended December 31, comprised the following:
It thotmands of USD 2012 2011
Provision for accounts receivable end unbilled revenue (Wate 19) 2227 1,992
Provision for advances pald (Note 20) 562 7i4
Provision/ (reversal) for inventories (Note 18} 524 {547)
Provision for other current essets (Note 22) 28 178
3,341 2,338

In 2012, the Group received back accounts receivable originated in 2009 in the amount of USD 836 thousand which
had been written off in previous year (2011: nil). In 2012, the Group created a provision for unbilled revenue recognised
in the financial statements but not billed to customers for the total amount of USD 1,143 thousand (2011: i),

o OTHER INCOME / (OTHER EXPENSES)
Other income for the years ended December 31, comprised the fol lowing:
In thorsands of USD 2052 2011
Write-off of payables 911 216
Sale of inventories 604 352
Income from relmbursement of insucance expenses 88 160
Penalties 60 66
Rent income 45 194
Other 141 2,529
1,849 3,517
Other expenses for the years ended December 31, comprised the following:
In thousemds of USD 2012 2011
Castofrent (158) -
Cost of inventories sold (17 {315)
Other {1,636} (243)
{1,966} {558)
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financizl Staternents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

1. INCOME AND EXPENSES INCLUDED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

Included in costs of sales

It thowsymds of USD 20312 2011
Pepreciation and amortization 33,146 323%
Warranties provision (reversal) {919) {(14,888)
Cost of inventories recugnized as an expense 267,921 440,850
Included in general and administrative expenses
In thousands of USD 2012 2011
Depreciation and amortization 5,440 4,735
Provision for constructive obligation 1,988 5815
Emiployee henefits expenses
Included in costs of sales
I thousands of USD 2012 2011
Weages and salaries and pension costs 113,177 123,293
Social security costs 6,502 7.932
Pension costs 16,857 14,561
Included in general and administrative expenses
I theusgnds of USD 2052 2011
Wages and salaries and penslon costs 18,844 25,951
Social security costs 1,158 1,493
Penslon costs 3,721 11,050
Average number of employees for the years ended December 31, comprised the following:
2012 2011
In Indig 18,671 9,734
In Kazakhstan 6,747 6,960
16,818 16,694
11, INCOME TAX EXPENSES
For the yeats ended December 31, income tex expenses comprised the following:
I thosands of USD 2012 2011
Current income tax:
Current income tax expenses 26,302 21,678
Adjusiments recorded in current incomne tax of prior periods {683) 567
Deferred income tax:
Foreign Tax expense 366 KLyl
Relating to origination and reversal of temporaty difference {8,324} I, 768
Deferred tax expenss resulting from change in tax rates (104} 52
Translation difference 174 113
17,751 24,555
3 YOUNG Accountants LLP
38 “}%ﬁg{&éi Ification purposes anly




KazStroyService Global B.V, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax provision in the consolidated financial statements and profit before income
tax multiplied by the statutory tax rate of 25% is as follows;

In thousands of USD 2012 2011
Profit before income tax expense 140,518 {120,309)
Statutory tax rute 25.0% 25,0%
‘Theoretical tax expense al the stalutory rate 35,117 (30,091}
Adjustments recorded in current income tex of prior periods {683} 367
Effect of change in tax rates - 1,580
Unrecopgnized tax losses 2276 7.656
Change in unarecognized deferred tax assets 572 {4,178}
Provision for constructive obligation 398 1,163
Foreign tax expense 365 367
Non-deductible expenses 347 568
Noa-deductible VAT 325 74
Non-deduetible impairment of advanees paid 112 143
Nen-deductible interest expense 76 34
Write-nff of account recsivable [6.1)) 189
Effect of domestic tax rates applicable to Individual Group cntities {3,391) 6,950
Dividends (5,546) -
Results on GDR's (non-taxable} {12,500) 32,500
Not taxable transfer of investments, net - 4,153
Additional revenue due o indirect taxes in India - 1,232
Tax gain on foreign tax - {172)
Dther 351 1,770

17,731 24,555

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities, if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities, and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities refate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority. Deferred tax balances calculated by applying statutory tax rates in effect at the respective reporting
dates fo the temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilitles and the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax as of December 31, 2012 comprised the following:

Recoguized in Recognized in consolidated
consolidated income stutement of other
statement comprehensive income
Origination and
reversal of
December 31, temporary Deferred tax due  Foreign currency December
In thousand sof [USD 2011 difference to revaluation transiation 31, 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued ¢xpenses 35,9458 2,414 - (540) 37,832
Warranty accruals 1,474 (184> - 1) 1,269
Due to employees (unused -
vacation) 1,439 31) 19 1,329
Inventory 853 (133) - (32) 708
Property, plant and ~
equipment 569 (564) (5 -
Aceount recefvables 119 44 - (2) 161
Taxes other than income tax - 153 - {1} 152
Carry forward Inss - 104 - - 104
Other non-current assets 99 (143 - (i) 84
Other deferred tax assets 1,845 823 - 32 2,636
42,386 2,852 - £633) 44,275
Deferred tax linbilities:
Unbilled revenue {43,198} 34dd - 628 (39,126)
Property, plant and
equipment (5,605) 2,327 {8,891) 124 {16,135)
Advance received {3,052) 397 - 42 (2,613}
Others {521) {396) bt 14 {903
{56.466) 8172 (8,891} 808 (58,777)
{14,110} 8,324 (8,891} 178 A14,502)
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KazStroyService Glohal B.V, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year emied_ December 31, 2012

1L INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)
Deferred tax as of December 31, 2011 comprised the folowing:

Recognized in Recognized in consolidated
cansolidated income statement of other
statement comprehensive income
Deferred tax  Foreign
Decermber Originatlon and reversal  dueto currency December
In thousands of USD 31, 2010 of temporary difforence  revalustion translation 31, 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Acerued expenses 23,280 12,982 - (304) 35,958
Warraaty accruals 4,446 {2,978) - 6 1474
Due to employees (unused vacation) L3 337 - (I 1,439
Inventory 939 (81) - {5} 853
Property, plant and equipment 210 364 - &) 569
Account receivables - 120 -~ (1 119
Other non-current assets 18 (119} - 1 -
Tuxes other than income tax 104 &y - t)] o4
Other deferred tax assets 1,363 476 — 6 1,845
31,573 11,097 — {314) 42,356
Deferred tax lizbilities:
Unbilled revenue (31,835) {11,710} - 347 (43,198)
Property, plant and equipment {9,059) {68%) - 53 {9.695)
Advance recsived (2,736) (335) - 23 (3,052)
Others {3983 (127 - 4 (521}
{14,028) {12,865) - 427 (56,466}
{12,455) {1.758) - 115 (14,116)

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be uvtilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

The movement in the net deferred tax liabilities was as follows:

In thoissands of USD 2012 2011
Net liability at December 31 {14,116) (12,455)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,324 {1,768)
Effect of changes in tax rates - -
Tax (expense) during the period recognized in equity (8,891) -
Translation difference 175 113
Net liability a5 of December 31 ' K (14,502) {14,110)

Unrecognized deferred tax (liability)/ assets
‘The movement in the net tax (Hability) asseis was as follows:

In thousands of USD 2812 2011
Tax Josses 12,193 9,917
Share of net {income} / losses of associates (7,737} (8,433)
Translation difference {(358) 338
Net unrecognized deferred tax asses as of December 31 4,098 1,822

® Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Global B,V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decenber 31, 2012

11, INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Unrecognized deferred tax (Jiability)/ assets {continued)

Unrecognized deferred tax Habilities are related fo taxes, that would be payable on the unremitted earmings of certain of
the Group’s associates, and were not recognized for the following reasons:

®  The Group has determined it to be unlikely thet unremitted eamings would realize through sale proceeds, as
the Group currently has no intentions of selling any of its associates in the foreseeable future,

The Group has determined that tax losses will not be recognized until either possibility to offset them against tax gain or
passing though period 1t is allowed by the Tax Law to offset such losses.

i2.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the yearended December 31, 2012 the movement of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Buildings
and Construc-
Construc- Plant and tion in

In thousands of USD Land tions  equipment Vehicles Other  propress Total
Coste
At December 31, 2011 A7 48,575 125,352 33579 15,546 4,815 331,5%4
Additiors - T.756 8,873 599 834 1,623 19,68%
Digposals (52) (1,874) {2,673) (564) (487) (1,93%5) (7,585)
Revalustion - - 38,726 - - - 38,726
Transfers e 1,775 34 4 4 (181N -
Reclassificalions - (182) 358 93 (161) (150 -
Translation difference (70 {914) {5,193) {556) {629) (54 {7,316)
At December 31, 2012 3,605 55,136 265607 33,157 15,197 2,482 375,004
Ateomulated B
depreciation and
impairment:
At December 31,2011 (5} {11231} {102,434) (16,546) (6:490) = (137,705}
Depreciation charge - {6,777} (24,638} {3,456) {2,567) - (37,438}
Revaluation - - (5,111 - - - (5,111)
Disposals - 1,866 1476 352 37 T 5,073
Impairmest - - 227) - - - 220
Reclassifications - 9 {352) 193 150 - -
Translatin difference - 8 2,358 317 268 - 3214

: AtDecember 31,2012 (5) (16,851 {127,931} _{19,140) (8,268) - {172.165)

5 Net book value:
At Dacember 31, 2011 3,722 36,344 122,918 17,033 9,056 4,815 193,888
At Dpoersber 31, 2012 3,600 38,285 137676 14,017 6,839 2,482 202,890
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KazStroyService Global B.V.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decentber 31, 2012

Financial Statements

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2011 the movement of property, plant and equipment was as follows:

Construc-

Buildings and Plant and tion In
I thousands vf USD Land _ Coustructions  equipment Vehicles Other progress Total
Cost:
At December 31, 2010 3,894 43,416 202,502 44,737 15,359 7.490 317,398
Additions 67 1,201 38,544 1,060 2,310 5,059 54,331
Disposels - 6,622} (8.089) {1,625} {991) (2,873 {20,200
Translers — 4,226 43 11 193 {4,473} -
Reciasgifications - 1,629 8,660 (9.864) (444) 19 -
Trapsiation difference {234} (1,365) {16,308) (740} {881} (407} (19,935}
At December 31, 2011 3,727 48,575 225,352 33579 15,546 4,815 331,504
Accumulated
deprecistien and
impairment;
At December 31, 2010 &3] (10,228) (83.369) (17,081)  (5,238) - (115921}
Depreciation charge - {6,205) {22,366) {5,212} (2,565) - {36,348}
Disposats - 3,895 1,613 1,163 820 - 6,893
Impairment - - Y - - - #H
Reclagsifications - (288} (4,023) 4,180 133 - —
Translation difference = 545 6,317 402 360 - 7,674
At December 31, 2011 (5) €12,231) (102,434) (16546) {6490 (137,706}
Net baok value;
At December 31, 2010 3,889 33,188 119,133 27,656 10,12] 7,490 201,477
At December 31, 2011 3,722 36,344 122,918 17,033 9,036 4,815 193,588

As at December 31, 2012 the Group had certain property,

{Note 28).

plant and equipment pledged for the Group’s borrowings

As at December 31, 2012 property, plant and equipment balances contain fully depreciated fixed assets with a rofal cost

of USD 10,127 thousand (2011: USD 11,393 thousand),

The above tables include machinery and equipment leased under the finance lease agreement (Note 37} as at December

31 as follows:

T thonsands of USD 2012 2081
Machinery and equipment, cost 8,736 7,031
Less: Accymuiated depreciation {1,509} {459
Net book value 7327 6,572

Praperty, plant and equipment amounting to USD 7,031 thousand were leased from Al Hilal Bank in 2011.The above
machinery and equipment were pledged as part of finance lease arrangement.

The Group capitalizes borrowing costs only in cases when the loan is obtained for construction or purchase of certain
equipment as qualified assets, The amount of capitalized borrowing vosts, included in PPE, during 2012 is nil, (2011

nil).
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KazStroyService Global B,V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

13, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
For the years, ended December 31, 2012and year 2011 the movement of intangible assets was as follows:

In thousands of USD Software Rights Tatal
Cost:

At December 31, 2010 3,114 38 3,152
Additions 740 10,940 11,680
Disposals {310) - (310
Translation difference {136} (1,361) (1,497
At December 31,2011 3,408 9,617 13,028
Additions 937 19,581 20,518
Disposals (1) - 13
‘Franslation difference {40) {783} {823}
At December 31, 2012 4,304 28,418 32,718
Accomulated amortization:
At December 31, 2010 {1,541} - {1,541)
Charge {17 - {1TH
Disposal 136 - 186
Transtation difference 69 - 69
At Becember 31, 2011 {2,063} - 2,063
Charge {1,148) - (1,148)
Disposal 2 - 2
Transiation difference 85 -~ 85
At December 31, 2012 _ £3,124) - {3,124)
Net book value:

At December 31, 2011 1,345 2,617 10,962
At December 31, 2012 1,180 28,415 29,595

Intangible assets include software and rights, Software is amortised for five years. Right to operate of Bhubaneshwar —
Puri section of highway in the Republic of India, this is being constructed by “Bhubapeshwar Expressways Private
Limited (BEPL)” and depreciated over the operation phase of the project on a siraight-line basis, which is over 25 years,
The rights to operate are pledged for corresponding loans of BEPL. The Group estimates completion of construction
period within 2013,

14, INVESTMENTS
As at December 31, 2012 the investments valued at equity method comprised the following;

Name of entity Share of ownership Relationship
JSC PSN Kazstroy JVC {“PEN KazStray™) 0% Associate
Keppel Kazekhstan LLP (*Keppel™} 50% Agsocidte
ISKER KazStroyService LLP, (ISKER) 0% Associste
Pipeling Service LLP 50% Associate

For the years, ended December 31, the movement of investments was as follows:

In thowsands of USD

At December 31, 2010 66,457
Notional contribution 83
Share of income / (loss) in associates {9,525
Trenslation difference (699)
December 31, 2011 88 366
Cantribution in cash i
Notiona! contribution 24
Dividends received (8,911)
Revaluation of plant and equipment 1,210
Share of income / (Joss) in associntes 5,416
Transtation difference (1,300}
December 31, 2012 81,805
i P
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year eaded December 31, 2012

14. INVESTMENTS (continued)
All entities are private entities that are not lsted on any public exchange.

In Jupe 2007, the Group through its 100% subsidiary JSC “OGCC “KazStroyService” together with “PSN Asia
Limited” (“PSN™} founded an entity, JSC “PSN KazStroy” (“PSN KazStroy™). PSN KazStroy provides services related
to exploitation and technical maintenance of of} properties, In 2007 PSN KazStroy issued 546 thousand shares, which
were bought by both participants at par for USD 184 thousand {KZT 27,300 thousand} each. During 2009 the Group
incressed ifs investments in JSC “PSN KazStroy" through additional payment of USD | million (K2ZT 148,670
thousand) as part of original foundation agreement upon fulfillment of certain service performance indicators.

As at December 31, 2012 the Group through its 100% subsidiary J8C “OGCC “KazStroyService” had investment of
50% in Keppel Kazakhstan LLP (“Keppel™).

As at December 31, 2012 the Group through its 100% subsidiaries Amritha Sharanya Leasing & Invesiments Private
Limited, SRA Finance and Investments Private Limited and Petron Investment Private Limited had investments in
shares of several companies. As at December 31, 2012 the total amount of such investments is equal to {USD 86
thousands (2011: USD 89 theusand), which are accounted at cost,

Notional contribution

In 2012 and 2011 the Group provided new loans and changed maturity for existing loans to related parties, which are
described in Notes 16 and 24, Tn thess consolidated financial statements, the loans were discounted using the Group's
borrowing rate (9.25% - USD currency, 12% - KZT currency) to their fair value, with the difference between nominal
and fair value being recorded as an addition to the investment in the associates.

Translation difference
Translation difference arose mainly as the result of translation of investments from Kazakh T enge to USD,

As at December 31, 2012 financial information of the Group's investment comprised the following:
In thovsands of USD PSN KazStroy Keppel ISKER Gthors 2012

Shere of the assoriates® statement of
financial position:

Current assets 32,964 27,542 529 - 61,035
Non-current assets 4,667 53,399 - 86 58,152
Current Habilities (26,181) {&,674) (60 - {33,356)
_Non-current {iabilities - {4,025} - "’ (4,025}
Total 11,450 70,247 18 . 86 81,806
In thousands of USD PSN KuxStroy Keppel ISKER Others 2012
Share of the associates’ revenue and
profit
Revenue 85,442 12,738 267 - 102,447
Profit 3,600 1,794 22 - 5416
Carrying amount of the invesiment 11,450 70,242 28 86 81,806
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

14, INVESTMENTS (continued)

As at December 31, 2011 financial information of the Group’s investment comprised the following:

I thowsands of USD PSN KazStroy Keppel ISKER Others 2013
Share of the nssocintes’ statement of

finaneial pasition:

Current assels 25,032 26,940 - - 51,972
Non-cusrent asscts 2,036 32,748 - 89 54,873
Current liabilities {19,075) (2,404) - - {21,479
Non-cumrent Habilities - T - - -
Total 7,993 77,284 - 88 - 85,366
In thousoneds of USD PSN KazStroy Keppel ISKER Others 2011
Share of the assoclates’ revenue and

profit

Revenue 50,411 32,585 - - 102,996
Profit 4,296 15,220 - - 19,525
Carrying gmount of the investment 7,993 77284 - §9 85,366

For acquisitions/transfers of subsidiaries within the Group, classified as transactions under commion control, the Group
has used pooling of interest method for accounting. Within the period under consideration there were no acquisitiong
outside the Group of companies consolidated at equity method.

1% OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their geographical locations and has the
following reportable segments:

¢  Republic of Kazakhstan,
& Republic of India,

¢ FEurope,

=  Singapore.

The companies located in Republic of Kazakhstan and Republic of India are operating companies. The companies
located in Europe are holding offices. Singapore’s companies’ role is evolving,

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment, Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated firancial statements.

=Y UNGiAccountants LLP
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

15, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the years, ended December 31, 2012 and year 2011 the segment information comprises the following:

In thousands of USD
Adjustments
Period ending December 31, 2012 Republicof Republicof and
Kagakhstan Iadin Europe Singepore  eliminations Consolidated
External customer (withia segment) 479,091 445,064 - - - 924,188
Inter-segment 5,184 218,758 - 2,160 {226,072) -
__Total revenue 484,245 663,822 - 2,160 {226,672) 924,155
Finance income external (within segment) 19,458 1,031 65,022 - - 85,508
Inter-segment 12,261 636 23,838 = {36,73%) -
Total finance inesme 31,716 1,667 88,860 - {36,735} 85,508
Finance cost external{within segment) {30,96%) (22,256) (16,603) {8} - (63,830}
Inter-scement - {451y ~ — 451 -
Totnl finance cost (30,965) (32,70 (10,603) {6} 451 (63,830)
Impairment losses recognized (10,723) {2,174) - - - {12,897}
Reversals of impairment losses 2,041 912 - - - 2,953
Depreciation and emortization (27,947 (10,639) - - - {38,586}
Share of profit of assosiutes 5,416 - - - - 5416
Income tax expense {16,269 {1,096} - (366) - {17,731}
Segment profit 86,189 (2,405) A3 282 (38,716) 122,787
Operating assets’ 672,552 552,757 566,882 2,375 (95,871) 1,698,725
Operating Habifities (439460)  (471,504) (276,073)  (1,048) 201,626 (986,459)
Non-current asgefs® 139,641 94,705 -~ - (1,790) 232,556
Investment in assoeiates 81,720 86 - - - 81,806
Capital expeaditure’ 12,607 31,484 - - (3.888) 46,203

1. Operating segment assets do not include investments (USD 81,806 thousand) as these assets are managed on a Group
basis.

2. Nen-current assots for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepaymant for
equipment.

3. Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Cash Flow for the year ended December 31, 2012 by segment comprises the following:

Republicof  Republic  Euwrope  Singapore Adjustments Consolidated

Kazakhstan  of India and

In thousands of USD eliminations
Cash flow from operating activities 55,958 4,334 (23,300 {472) 19,547 86,465
Cash flow from investment activities {9,649} (24.818) 27844 - (37,714) {43,737y
Cash fiow from financing actlvities (29,021) 23338 (6,630) 400 17,767 5,854
Net change In cash and cash equivalents 17888 2,854 (2.088) (72) - 18,582
Effect of foreign exchange difference (3d9) {229} ) - - (576}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beglnaing
of the pericd 16,217 5542 2,787 981 - 19,627
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the period 27,756 8,267 701 909 - 37,633
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continged)

For 12 month 2011 and at December 31, 2011 the segment information comprises the following:

Inthasandsor USD
Year ended Adjustments
December 31, 2011 Republicof  Republic and

! Kazakhstan of India Europe  Singspore eliminations  Consolidated
External customer (within segment) 500,654 - 525969 - - - 1,026,623
Inter-segment 1,680 215,380 - 2,160 (219.229) -
Total revenue 202,343 741,349 - 2,160 (218,229) 1,026,623
Finance income externsi(within segment) 13,257 775 - - - 14,032
Inter-sezment 1411 437 41,177 - (43,025) -
Total finance income 14,668 1,212 41,177 - (43,025) 14,032
Finance cost external{within segment) (16,305) {14,003}  (153,922) - - (184,320)
Inter-segment - {1,265} - - 1,265 -
Tota! finance cost {16,305) (15358) (153,922) - 1,265 (184,320)
Impairment losses recognized 543 - - - - 543
Reversais of impairment losses {1,881) (1,004) - - - {2,385)
Depreciation and amortization : (24,959)  (12,166) - - - (37,125)
Share of profit of associates 10,525 - - - - 19,523
Income tax expense (15,176} {9,003) {10} {366) - {24,555)
Segment profit 44,717 AL,256 (165,679 556 {45,714) {144,854)
Operating assets’ 616,729 806,412 506,190 1577 (63,551) 1,567,357
Ogperating labilities (459,711)  (405499)  (292,022) £532) 154,762 {1,003,002)
Non-carrent asges’ 132,012 7,657 - - * 209,666
Investment in associstes 85,277 89 - - ~ 85,366
Capital expenditire’ 20203 46,172 - - (362) 66,013

1, Operating segment assets do not include investments (USD 85,366 thousand) and loans to related parties (USD 1,308
thousand) as these assets are managed on a Group basis.

2. Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepayment for
squipment.

3. Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Cash Flow for the year ended December 31, 2011 by segment comprises the following:

Republic of Republic Eerope  Singepors  Adjustments  Consolidated

Kazakhstan of India and
eliminations

In thousands of USD _
Cash flow froms operating activities {154,585} (34,718) {1,557 122 {868} {197.640)
Cash flow from investment activities (24,018 {27,941 4,643 (11,136) (12,813) {71,261)
Cash flow from financlng activities 132,123 66,800 (41,355) 11,587 13,681 182,846
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {46,476) 4,141 {44,309) 583 - (86,061)
Effect of forsign exchange difference (502) (390} 2 - - {1,390)
Cash and cash cquivalents af the
beginning of the peripd 57,19} 2,3%6 47,053 398 - 107,078
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period 10,213 5,647 2,786 981 - 19,627
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is. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

Reconciliation for adjustments and eliminations for operating segment information was as follows:

In thousands of USD 2012 2011

Segment profit

Dividends paid by Keppel te K8S KZ 8n1) -

Dividends paid by subsidiaries to KSS Global B V {25,088) (41,048)

Others intercompany adjustments and eliminationg K7 4,666)
{38,716) (45.714)

Operating assets

Adfustment for investment {178,995} {174,652}

Adjustment for borrowings 1o related parties {20,539} {1,260)

Other Indercompany adjustments and elimination 103,663 112 361
{95.871) {63,351}

Operating Habilities

Adjustment for loans from related parties 6,194 1,011

Other intercompatiy adjusiments and elimination 195432 153,751
201,626 ' 154,762

i6. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at December 31, other non-current assets comprised the following:

1 thonsands of USD 2012 2011
Reteation receivables 17,730 216
Long term postion of Indian Taxes 9,832 -
Share application money 6,652 6,948
Deferred expenses 3,803 987
Retention for office rent 420 378
Deposit ~ 321
Other 239 21

38,716 8,871

In 2011 the Group made prepayments in the amount of USD 6,948 thousand (INR 376,900 thousand), with relation to
future purchase of additional holdings in Bhubaneshwar Expressways Private Limited (BEPL). Per terms of the
agreement, the purchase of additional sheres may only be executed upan completion of two years from the commercial
opetation date of BEPL’s highway construction project, or upon termination of the concession agreement with the
National Highways Authority of Indis, whichever is earlier, This purchese copsideration is meant te purchase all the
shares held by Valecha engineering Limited in Bhubaneshwar Expressways Pvt Lid, Valecha currently holds 26% of
the paid up capital of the BEPL., With the purchase of this stake, the group will hold 100% of the paid up capital of the
company from its current leve] of 74%.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

17, LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

As at December 31, long-term bank deposits comprised the following:

in thonsands of UUSD
Date of

Leng-ferm deposits Interest rate placement Maturity date 2012 2011
Kazkoments Bank 4,7% 2012 2014 663 -
State Bank of Indfg 7.25%-925% 2010201 2014-2015 %6 1,139
ING Vysya Bank Limited 2.45% 2012 2014 258 -
Penjab National Rank 7.50%9.6% 2011-2012 2014 142 61
Cenara Bank T9% - 9.25% 2010-2011 2014 35 84
Industrial Developmert Bank of India 7.25%-9.5% 20102011 2013 - 79
Axis Bank Limited 6.3% 9.25% 2009 2013 - 119
State Bank of Indore 8,25% - 8,75% 01t 2013 - 62
Indian Overseas bank 8,25% -9% 2011 2013 — 20

Plus: Interest receivable

1,484 1,364

The long-term bank deposits are pledged with different banks toward the banks’ guerantees issued on various existing
projects of KazStroyService Investment Pte Ltd, Singapore (KSSIIPL), Long—term deposit with Kazkomerts Bank is
pledged with a credit line (KazStroyService OGCC JSC)

13, INVENTORIES
As at December 31, inventories comprised the following;

In thougands of USD 2012 2011
Materinls and supplies 33,051 33,195
Spare parts 11,616 11,769
Professional uniforms 3,311 5251
Fuel 3,453 1,935
Instrurnenis 2,206 2,606
Packaging materials 172 214
Work-in-progress - 2,310
Other ' 1,761 2,123
55,570 59,403

_Less: Allowance for obsolete inventories {1,438} (1,989)
54,132 57414

The movement in the allowance for obsolete inventories was as follows for the years ended December 31,

in thousands of USD 2012 2011
Allowance for obsolete inventories at the beginning of the year {1,989) {2,547)
Charge for the year (Nore 8) (722) 4
Reversal for the year 203 -
Write off{Nore & 1,038 3851
Translation diffcrence 37 Il
Allowancs for obsolete inventories at the end of the year (1,438) (1,989)

During 2012, USD 458,552 thousand (2011: USD 444,000 thousand) was recognized as an expense for inventories
carried at lower of cost and net realizable value. This is recognized In cost of sales and work-in-progress. The part of
inventories Is pledged in different bank as part of pari-passu on assets (Nofe 44). The carrying amount of inventories
pledged as at December 31, 2012is equal to USD 1,061 thousand (2011: USD 1,077 thousand).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at December 31, accounts receivable comprised the following:

In thousands of {/SD 2012 201

Accounts receivable for: '

Canstruction work 194,170 235,870

Concessior arrangement reccivable 5,624 -

Other 816 1,164
200,610 237,034

Less: Allowance for doubtfuf debts {1.441) {1,475)
199,169 235,559

As at December 31, 2012 accounts receivable for construction work include retentfons of USD 47,125 thousand
(2011: USD 80,613 thousand). The retention is the amount witiheld by the customer fiom each contract until final
acceptance, Account recefvables for construction works are not interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms.

Concession arrangement receivable comprise of the amount receivable as government grant with respect to concession
arrangement in India comprise as follows:

In thousands of USD 2012 20114
As at January | - -
Receivable granted duoring the period 15,438 -
Repayment during the period {9,814) -

5,624 -

As at December 31, 2012, the Group’s future cash inflows on certain construction contracts were pledged under the
bank loan agreements (Note 44).

Trade receivables are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors.
Receivables are individually impaired, Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses
of these receivables, As at December 31, 2012, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances, are not
materially different from their caleulated fair values.

The trade receivabie allowance is set up according to aging, when the trade receivables are more than 3 month,
according to retention period, rate and the terms of contract.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts was as follows:

In thousands of USD Individually impaired
At December 31, 2016 (358}
Charge for the year (Wotz 8) (2,035)
Recovery for the year (Moie §) 43
Write-off 947
Transtation difference 128
At December 31, 2011 (1475)
Charge for the year (Nore 8 {2,855)
Recovery for the year ((Note 8§) 835
Write-off 1710
Transiation difference 244
At December 31, 2012 (1,441}

As at December 31, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables are as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past due sor <30 30~ 60 §0-38 90120
In thousards of USD Teta) impaired Days days day day  >120 days
2012 199,169 123,020 46,224 1,768 4,280 2,121 27,759
2011 233,359 76,700 78,002 23,677 17,720 3,187 42,264

.‘."?JB"NSTé}b G Accountants LLP
50 Inttiafled Jar Itnfification puposes only




KazStroyService Global B.Y, Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29, ADVANCES PAID
As at December 31, advances paid comprised the following;

I thouseands of USD 2012 2011
Advances paid for;

Inventories 9,033 10,021
Work and services 45,851 40,228
_Dther 438 -~
' 55,322 50,249
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts _ (2,322) {2,104)
53,000 48,145

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts was as follows for the years ending December 31,
JIn thousands of USD 2012 20U
Allowange for doubtful debts at the beginning of the year (2,304) (1,410)
Charge for the yvear (Note §) (1,324} {1,279}
Recovery for the year (Note 8) 762 565
Write-off 315 -
Translation difference 20 20
Allowance for doubtful debts =t the end of the perlod (2,322) (2,104)

21. PREPAID TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX
As 8t December 31, prepeid taxes other than income tax comprised the following;

In heousamds of USD 2012 2011
Taxes recoverable-VAT 8,775 6,582
Indian taxes recoverable - 8,317
Other taxes 3,886 4,083

12,661 18,982

22. COTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at December 31, other current assets comprised the following:

T thorsanids of UUSD 2012 2011
Prepaid insurance 2,029 3167
Dae from employees 1,803 1,365
Deferred expenses 2845 2,127
Prepaid custom duties 350 207
Insurance claim recefvable 65 167
Tnterest receivable 60 306
Duties recoverable from client ™~ 6,056
Other 107 1,505
6,459 15,400
Less: Altowance for doubifisl debts (&35 {446)
6,125 14,954
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts was as follows for vears ended December 31;
In thousands of USD 2012 2011
Allowance for doubtful debts at the beginning of the year {445) (2
{Charge) / Reverse for the year (Note &} (262) (79
Recovery for the year/Nose 8) 24 -
Write-offs 133 -
Translation difference 7 4
Allowance for doubtfirl debis at the end of Hie period {334) (446}
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

On November 2009 KS$ Global B.V. has entered into Sele and Purchase and Investment sgreement with Claremont
Holdings Limited relating to the acquisition of 50 miltion global depository receipts (“*GDRs”) each representing one
common unit in Zhatkmunai L.P at a price of four USD (USD 4.00) per GDR, The GDRs are listed on the London
Stock Exchange. The transaction was completed on September 9, 2010 by KSS Global B.V. and was funded by
issuance of loan notes with an interest rate of 12%.

The GDR’s are pledged as security for a facility of USD 200,000 thousand with Standard Chartered Bank (Note 28).-

As at December 31, financial asset through profit and loss comprised the following:

In thousands of USD 201 2011
Fair value at the beginning of the year 485,000 615,000
Purchased during the yoar - -
Change in fuir valye 30,000 {130,000}
Market price at the end of the year £35,800 485,000

4, LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES
As at December 31, loans to related parties comprised the following:

It thousangs of USD 2012 2011
P3SN Kazsiroy JSC - 1308
- 1,308

In 2008, the JSC OGCC KazStroyService provided an interest free loan to an associate company JSC PSN KazStroy,
for & total amount of USD 324 thovsand{(KZT 48,000 thousand), with initial maturity in March 2009, In 2010, the terms
of loan were changed and it became interest-bearing with interest rate of 8%. In December, 2011 the maturity date af
the loan was prolonged to March 2012. The logn was fully repaid in February 2012,

In April and May 2011 JSC OGCC KazStroyService provided two interest-bearing loans to JSC PSN KazStroy
amounting to USD 497.5 thousand (KZT 73,000 thousand) each with an interest rate of 8% and with initial maturity in
October and November 2011. In December 2011, the maturity date for loans was prolonged until March 31, 2012. The
loans were fully repaid in June and July 2012.

25, SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS
As at December 31, shortterm deposits comprised the following:

In thousand's of USH
Short-term deposits Fnterest 2012 2011
ING Netherlands 0.10%-0.65% 23,000 12,000
State Bank of India 6.5%-9,25% 2,854 2,89%
IDBI Bank Ltd, 6.75% - 9.25% 637 263
Axis Bank Limited 6% 8% 294 574
Canara Bank 6.75% - 7.25% 121 91
State Bank of Indors 8.25%-9.25% 58 363
ING Vysya Bank 5% -9.5% 43 o
Punjab National Bank £.5% - 10.5% 32 145
Kotak viahindra Bank 9.50% - o4
Kazkomerts Bank 9% - 674
Indian Qverseas bank 6.5%-9,25% - 99
Industrial Development Bank of India T« 9.25% - 105
State Baok of Mysore 6.75%« 8.0% - 507
Plus: Interest receivable 15 180
27560 18,29]

Short-term bank deposits primarily represent bank deposits pledged with different banks toward the banks’ guarantees
issued for the various ongoing projects (Note 37 3
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at December 31, cash and cash equivalents comprised the foilowing:

I thousands of USD 2012 . 2011
Tenge denominated balances with banks 12,870 3,254
{ndian rupces denominated balances with bank 9,662 6,234
Forelgn: ewrrency denominated balances with banks 368 4,988
USD denominated balance with banks 5,145 4,801
Cash in transit - 1,000
Cash on hand 435 409
Less: restricted eash (791} {1,064)

37,633 19,627

Foreign currency (not USD) denominated cash comprises at December 31, 2012 primarily cash in KZT (69.6 %),
(2011: INR 78%), At December 31, 2012 59.5% of cash balance was held with Sberbank Russia (2011: 23.7% with

Axis Bank).

At December 31, 2012 the balance of restricted cash represents deposits opened for non-resident employees as required
by the Kazakhstani law (2011: deposits opened for non-resident employees as required by the Kazakhstani law).

27. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Ordinary shsres issued and fully paid

On March 29, 2011 the Company changed its articles of association and amended the authorized share capital. The
authorized share capifal of the Company amounts to EUR 50,000 and is now divided into 8,800,000 A shares and
200,000 B shares of EUR 0.0} each. Further on May 19, 2011 the Company issued 33,334 A shares and 166,666 B
shares of EUR 0.01 each.

As at December 31, 2012 1,833,334 A shares and 166,666 B shares of EUR 0.01 each are fssued and paid in (December
31, 2011: 1,833,334 A shares, 166,666 B shares of EUR 0,01 each), In the financial statements, the issued and fully
paid-in capital of EUR 20,000 (2011: EUR 20,000) is translated into US Dallars using the year-end exchange rate of
EUR 1=USD 1.3194 (2011: EUR 1 = USD 1.2939),

2812 2011
Units Units
A ordinary shares of 0,01 EUR esch 1,833,334 1,833,334
B ordinary shares of 0,01 BUR each 166,666 166,666
Total aumber of ordinary shares 28000,000 2,008,000
Share Premium
As at December 31, share premium comprise the following:
In thougands of USD
At December 31 . 2010 ) 28,686
Coniribution in cagh -
At Decemnber 31, 2011 28,686
Contribution in cash -
At December 31, 2012 28,686

Other comprehensive Income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) includes from fortign currencies translation reserve and property plant and
equipment revaluation reserve,

Foreign currencies fransiation reserve

Foreign currenicy translation reserve Is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the fnancial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. As at December 31, 2012 foreign currency manslation reserve is equal to
USD 37,866 thousand (2011: USD 31,092 thousand).
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27, ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Property plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increases in the fair valus of plant and equipment and decrease to the

extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same assets previously recognized in equity,
Acquisition of subsidiary

In July 2010, the Group together with Valecha Engineering Limited (VEL) established a new entity "Bhubaneshwar
Expressways Private Limited” (“BEPL”) for the purposes of construction, operation and maintenance of Bhubneshwar -
Puri section of highway in the Republic of India. In 20} 1, BEPL issued additional shares pro rata to the ownership
between Group and VEL. In 2012 both participant made additional contribution in cash to the share premium reserve of
BEPL.

Non-controlling share of subsidiaries

The Group has two non-fully owned subsidiaries Petron Engineering Construction Limited (PECL) and Bhubaneswar
Expressways Private Limited (BEPL)

The following table tepresents number of shares issued by each of the entities and non-controlling interest s at
December 31, 2012:

In thousands of USD PECL BEPL

Units Units
Number of shares belong to the Group 5,463,203 11,384,000
Number of shares belong to non-controlling shareholders 2,075,197 4,000,000
Total number of shares issued and fully paid 7,538,400 15,384,000
% helmnonncon&oilingﬂcho!ders 2753% 26,00%

Neon-controfling shave of subsidiaries

The following table represents changes in share of non-controlling sharsholders for the periods;

In thousands of USD PECL BEPL Total
Share of non-controlling sharehelder as at December 31,2010 5318 1 9,319
Profit/(ioss) for period 2,674 - 2,674
Translation difference {1.422) -~ {1,422)
Diividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (225) - (225}
Purchase of additional shares in Petron Englneering Construction Limited {1,678) - (1,678)
Change in share capital/share premium for the period paid by nomcentrolling sharcholders - 4,569 4,969
Share of non-controlling shareholder as at December 31,2011 8,667 4,970 13,637
Profit/(loss) for period {390) 837 438
Translation difference (219 {80y (299)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders d on - 80)
Change in share capital/share premium for the period - 75 75
Sharg of noa-controlling shareholder as at December 31,2012 7,959 5,862 13,761

Dividends of subsidiaries ta non-controlling shareholders as at December 31:

In thowzands of USD 2012 2011
Petron Engineering Construetion Limited (PECL) 20 225
40 245

A
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27, ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Transactlons affected equity

Contribution made on the pooling interest in particular the difference between nequirer’s cost of investment and the
acquirer’s equity is a result of consolidation of Group subsidiarles applying a pooling of interest-type methed, which

was adjusted against retained eamings. For considered period, such transactions are as follow:

*  Effect of shares contribution

e  Purchase of additional shares in Petron Engineering Construction Limited

The effect of the transactions was recognized in equity.

Effect of shares contribulion

In 2011, the Group paid in cash for acquisition of KazStroyService Limited UK (KSS Ltd UK} from parent

Purchase of additional shares in Petron Engineering Construction Limited
In2011, the Group purchased 20% ownership in Petron Engineering Construction Limited on Bombay Stock Exchange

(BSE)

There were no such transactions in 2012,

28. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As at December 31, interest bearing loans and borrowings, including interest accrued, comprised the following:

In thousands of USD

g:::;;eg:;::teres: Currency  Country’ Cu rre::tl:terest Matarity date 2012 2011
State Bank of India INR IND 12.25%12.96% Cn demand 36,431 31,913
Axis Bank Limited INR IND [3.00%1550%  On demand-Jun 2013 33898 32,573
Sher Bank UsSh KZ 50% May-Jun 2013 14,147 59,348
Punjab National Bank R {ND 13.50%-15.25% On demand 13,643 6,404
ICICI Bank Limited INR IND 13.75%-14.09% On demeand-Oct 2013 9489 16,246
Bank Positlv Kazakhstan KZT KZ 6.50% May 2013 6,694 -
SBCC INR IND 14% On demand 4,441 -
Stats Bank of Hyderabad INR IND 13.92% On demand 4,264 3,684
IDBI Bank INR IND 14.09%-15.25% On demand 2,726 2,624
ING Vysya Bank Limited INR IND 13.45% On demand 1,810 1,212
Indusind Bank INR IND 12.25% Sep 2013 1,506 -
Indian Oversens Bank INR IND 15.22% On demand 996 040
Bank of India INR IND 15.00% On demand 907 911
Inter Corporate Deposits INR IND 15.5%17.00% Jun-Apr 2013 640 -
Yes Bank INR IND 14.93% On demand 448 860
CANARA Bank INR IND 14.50% On demand 180 164
Claremont Holdings Ltd UsD NL 12% Jan 2012 - 232,30%
HSBC Banik UsD KZ 52%-748% May 2012 - 13,629
Citi Bank UsD Kz 4.75%-5.08% Naov 2012 - 18,632
VTB bank KZT KZ 3% May 2032 - 8,565

132,220 439,500

Please note that IND-India; NL -~ Netherlands; KZ-Kazakhstan'
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28. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS {rontinaed)
in thousands of USD
C’;i‘;‘:,’:: :f;::;“ offong-term interest o oncy  Country inﬁf::f’r‘:u Maturity date 012 2011
ATF Bank Usp KZ 501% Dec 2013 6,489 6,508
SREf Infrestructure Finance Lid INR IND 11.90% Dec 2013 3,361 -
SREI Equipment Finanes Private Ltd INR IND 13.50%-14.65% Dec 2013 2,748 4,794
Halyk Bank (I) EUR KZ 4.70% Jul-Oct 2013 2,37 2303
Standerd Chartered Bank UsD NL 3.81% Jan 2013 1,845 -
State Bank of India INR ND 13.07% Pec 2013 1,724 281
State Bank of Patiala INR IND 15.50% Dec2013 027 964
State Bank of Hyderabad INR IND 15.50% Dec 2013 97 964
Tata Capital Limited INR IND 11.23%13.80%  Jan-Dec 2013 894 136
L&T Finance Limited IR IND 16.95% Dec 2013 78 708
Sundaram finance Ltd, INR IND 9.54%-13.51% Bec 2013 666 592
ReligarcFinvest Lid. INR. IND 10.25%~10.50% Dec 2013 640 580
Halyk bank (T} USH KZ 6.52% ApeMay 2013 247 57
[CICY Bank Limited MR IND 12.04% Dec 2013 59 -
HDFC banrk limited INR IND 9.92%-10,20% Dec 2013 43 56
ING Vysys Bank Limited INR IND 15.2%-15.75% 2012 - 503
Sicom Investment & Finance Lid INR IND 16.75% 2012 - 843
CANARA Bank INR IND 14.5% 2042 - 76
Axis Bank Limited INR IND 9.95%-14.75% 20612 - 19
23,668 19,596
155,888 459,49
In thousands of USD
Leng-term interest bearing Ioans:  Currency Country Current Meturity date
interest rate 2012 2011
Standard Chartered Bank UsSD NL 3.81% Oct 2014 220,800 -
1L.&T Finance Limited INR IND 10.95%-12.75%  Fcb 2016-Jul 2025 7,383 1,727
Punjab National Bank INR IND 12.75% Jul 2025 T339 1,352
SREI Infrastructure Finance Lid INR IND 9.75%-14.00%  Jun 2014-Mar 2016 6,842 -
Axis Bank Limited INR D 12.75% Jul 2025 6,280 -
g‘fgpﬁ‘:;“ff;“m Finance INR IND 12.75% Jal 2025 5641 1032
TATA Capits] Limited INR ND 13.80% Ful 2016 2,488 12
ATF Bank usp Kz 5.01% Feb 2014-8ep 2015 1,972 8,429
SRE! Equipment Finance Private Lid INR IND 14.65% Jui 2014 450 7.605
Sundaram Finance Ltd INR IND G.54%-13.51% Jun 2014 360 970
State Bank of Patiala INR IND 15.50% Mar 2014 228 1Li71
State Bank of Hyderabad INR IND 15.50% Jan 2014 228 937
Religare Finvest Ltd INR IND 10.25%-10.50% Feb 2014 92 753
ICICI Bank Limited INR IND 12,04% Feb 2016 83 -
HDFC Bank Limited INR IND §.929%-10.20%  May 2015-Jul 2616 39 74
State Bank of India INR IND 11.25%-16,i5% 2012 - 4515
Halyk Bank () EUR KZ 4.013%-6.12% Det 2012 - 2,243
ING Vysya Bank Limited INR IND 15.2%-15.75% 2013 - 503
Halyk Bank {11} Usp KZ 6.26%-6.77% Jub 2012 - 239
259,465 31,562
Totrl interest bearing loans and 415353 491,058

borrowings:

The Group borrows money to meet its’ working capital requirements and for purchasing of PPE or securities (term
loans). The Group has its borrowing in Kazakhstan, India, and Netherlands. The loans are secured by pledges of assets
and kmter-company guarantees; for the carrying amount of assets pledged see Note 44.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

28, INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)
Interest bearing loans and borrawhigs in Netherlands.

The berrowing in Netherlands is done for investment purposes in Zhalkmunai GDR’s, On September 9, 2010 KSS
Giobal BV concluded a Credit Agreement with Claremont Holding Ltd. for a loan facility of USD 200,000 thousand.
The initial maturity was for three years, and interest rate was 12% payable annually. And = revolving credit facility of
up to USD 20,000 thousand was granted. The maturity date is the last day of the Term of 2 Revolving credit loan.

KSS Global B.V. should repay fiily the loan on the Final maturity day which is specified by the loan agreement.

As at December 31, 2011 no amounts were withdrawn. The Loan was secured by guarantee of its subsidiary JSC OGCC
KazStroyService and GDR's have been pledged as collateral for the loan,

In Jannary 2012, K88 Gilobal BV restructured the loan in Standard Chartered Bank with interest rate of 3.5% + LIBOR
currently 4,5% with maturity in 2015,

Interest benring loans and borrowings in Kazakhstan,

The Group borrows money in Kazakhstan for general corporation purposes and for purchasing of PPE. The loans in
Kazakhstan are mostly short-term with maturity from 3-6 month with possibility to re-financing, which allows the
Group to decrease their interest costs, The interests are payable monthly, the principals are payable at maturities which
is specified for sach draw-down. There are severa! general credit lines opened in Kazakhstan banks both cash and non-
cash with current effective dates up to December, 2015 at the latest. The loans are secured by pledge of property, plant
and equipment, future cash receivables from existing contracts and cash on deposit.

Interest bearlng loans and borrowings in Mndin.

The Group borrows money in India for general corporation purposes and for purchasing of PPE. The Joans in India are
short-term for general operating requivements and long-term for purchasing of PPE, The interests and principal are
payable monthly with equal instalments till maturity except borrawing of BEPL, there are specific conditions existing in
the Joan contracts: the interest is payable monthly and principal is payable after finishing of construction period (in
three year) and until end of operating period till July 2025. The loans In India are secured by pari-passu charge on assets
of each subsidiary, and inter-companies corporate guarantees,

Undrawn borrowing facilities

Ag at December 31, 2012, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities that may be available for fiture operating
activities and to settle capital commitments for the total amount of USD 477,000 thousand (2011: USD 626,882
thousand). The undrawn borrowing facilities are available under the credit lines provided to the Group by the different
banks in Kazakhstan and India mentioned above,

The loan agreements on the subsidiary and group level include a varfety of financial covenants, such as liquidity, debt
end profitability ratios,

29. NOTES PAYABLE

The notes payable represent acceptances of bill of exchange against letter of credit by Petron Civil Engineering Private
Limited (PCEPL) and by Petron Engineering Construction Limited (PECL).

2012 201t
Acceptances of bill of exchange against letters of eredit _ 4,943 8.083
4943 8,083

EHERNST &YOU
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For (he year ended December 31, 2012

30. BONDS PAYABLE

In July 2012 the Group issued 15,000,000 thres-year coupon bonds on KASE out of which 14,308,990 were placed, and
3,000,000 were bonght back on October 25, 2012. The nominal value of each bond is KZT 1,060 and annual interest
rate 8%. Principal amount is payable on July 9, 2015, Interest is payable in ssmiannual instaliments. The bonds are
unsecured.

In thousands of USD 2612 2011
Principal amount 15,023 -
Unamortized discount (206) —
74817

Plus: interest payable 2,848 -
Present value of bonds payable 77,665 -
Shorf-term portion of bends pavable 2,767 -
Long-term portion of bonds payable 74,808 -
The amortization of premium for the years ended December 31, was as follows:

In fhousands of USD 2012 2011
Discount at bonds issuance (267 {10)
Amortization of discount 61 10
Unamortized discount {206) -

31. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITY

In 2011 the Group entered into a sale and leaseback agresment with Al HilalBank for four years with equal quarterly
repayments. Under the leaseback agreement, the Group sold machinery and equipment for total amount of USD 6,975
thousand (KZT 1,023 thousand) and received lease back in total amount of USD T,117 thousand (KZT 1,043 thousand)
without VAT (Note /2).The Group pledged the leased equipment with residusl value as of December 31, 2012 of
USD 7,227 thousand (KZT 1,089,398 thousands) as collateral for the sale and leaseback agreement,

The interest rate for the leaseback agteement is 9% per annum. At the end of the lease term in 2013, the ownership on
the leased machinery and equipment will be passed to the Group.

The reconciliation between the total amount of minimum lease payments as at December 31and their present value ig as
follows:

It thousands of USD 2812 2011
Not later than ong year 2,262 2,480
Later than one and not later than five years 2,580 4,918
Total lease payments 4:842 7,398
Less: estimated amount representing injerest (441} {941
Present vaive of minimum lease payments at Decerber 31 4,401 6,457
Long-term portion of lease payable 2.415 4,415
Short-term portion of lease payable 1,986 2,042
AR YO S oeront
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32. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at December 31, other non-current Habilities comprised the following;

Iny thousands of USD 2012 December 34, 2011
Advances received 56,106 57,282
Retention 6,154 3,214
Warmanty provision 3,029 5,239
Financisl goarantess 14 24
Other ~ 62
65,443 63,821

Advances received

As at December 31, 2012 the Group received advances from customers for construction works being performed through
fune 2014 amounting to USD 55,201 thousand (2011: USD 134,344 thousand). Non-current portion of advances
received from the customers was presented at fair value using the Group’s borrowing rate for 2012 with the difference
between their fair and nominal value recorded as finance income.

Warranty provision
Under certain provisions of the construction contracts, the Group is obliged to rectify construction defects identified by

a customer subsequent to construction completion. Such warranty generally extends for a maximum period of two years
from the date of construction acceptance.

Financlal guarantees

In March 2011, the Group issued a financial guarantee for a loan given to PSN Kazstroy by HSBC Rank Kazakhstan.
The guarantee was initially recognised at the fair value of liabilities, which was detormined by reference to the market
interest rates on similar guarantees and loan interest differential arising from such guarantees. At the originatior, the fair
value of guarantees jssued in favor of the loan given to PSN Kazstroy was recorded as a notional contribution to the
investrnent in the associate, As at December 31, 2012 the unamortized value of financial guarantee in the amount of
USD 11 thousand (2011: 10 thousand) was presented as current lability (Note 34) and the residual part in the amount of
USDI4 thousand (2011: USD 24 thousand) was presented as non-current Hability.

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY

Defined Benefit Scheme

Employee benefit liability under this scheme is payabie in accordance with the Group’s code on lzbor remuneration
concluded between the Group and ity employees,

The Defined Benefit Scheme is unflinded. The Group expects to contribute USD 250 thousand to its defined benefit
pension plans in 2013,

The Company has two defined benefit pension plans - Gratuity plan end other benefits plan, which inchudes leave
encashment and anniversary benefit programs,

The total Hability for the Group’s Defined Benefit Scheme according to the plans comprised the following as at
December 31:

In thousgnds of USD 2012 20611
Gratuity 473 1,448
Other benefits 1,757 1,079
Present value of defined benefit liability 2,230 2,527

g ; P
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33 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY (continued)

A reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit Hability with specified payments is as follows for the years
ended December 31;

It thausends of USD 2012 2011
Total liability at the begianing of the year 2,527 2744
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 220 212
Curent service cost 950 620
Benefits paid 470 {518)
Actusrial loss / (gain) recognized during the year (115) 11
Less tair value of plan assets {42) -
Contribution to Gratuity Fund upto 31.12.2012 {789} -
Transiation difference (52} {4423
Total Jiability &t the ond of the year 2,229 2,527
Liabliity falling due within onc year 302 231
Liabllity falling due after one year 1,927 ' 2.296

Current service cost and actuarial loss in the aggregate amount of USD 835 thousand were recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within payroll and related staff costs (201 1: USD 63 Ithousand).

The total Hability for the Group’s Defined Benefit Scheme, fair value of plan assets and surplus/deficit in the plan
comprised the following 25 at December 31

In thousands of USD 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Present value of defined benefit Hability 2,129 2,527 2,744 2,155 2,004
Fair value of plan assets 1,559 879 1,051 745 1,101
Sarplus / (Deficit) {6°70% {1.648) {1,693) (1,410 {303)

The estimates of the Group’s liability were made on the basis of the published statistical data regarding mortality and
the actual Group’s data concerning the number, age, gender and years of employee service. Other principl assumptions
used in determining benefit obligations for the Group’s plan are shown below:

2012 2011
Kazakhstan India Kazakhstan India
Discount rate 5.51% 8.5% 6.7% 8.5%
The expected rate of futare annual minimum salary
increases 7.0% 6.5% 6.0% 6.5%

34. LOANS FROM OTHER ENTITIES

Loans from other entities represent loans granted to subsidiaries by individuals and other loans received from other
entities (non-financial institutions), the foan are unsecured. The loan are payable in 2013,

As at December 31, loans from other entities comprised the following:

2012 2011
In thowsands of USD
Loan from individuals _ 116 124
116 124
/
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35, TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
As at December 31, trade accounis payable comprised the following:

In thousands of USD 2012 2011

Trade secounts payable to/for:

Subcontracters 119,379 105,741

Inventories 26,850 47,102

Machinery and equipment 331 3,199

Other 8,345 10,929
154,905 166,971

As at December 31, 2011 accounts payable to subcontractors includes retentions of USD 23,588 thousand (2011: USD
20,591 thousand).The retention is the amount withheld by the Group from each contract billing until final acceptance.

36, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, advances from customers are mostly for construction services and comprised the following:

in thousands of USD 2012 2011
Current portion of long-term advances from customers 138,722 63,265
Short-term advances from custotmers 24,588 103,418

164310 166,684

37, DEFERRED REVENUE
As at December 31, the movement of deferred revenue was as following;

In thousands of USD 2012 2011
At the beginning of the period T 15414 21,033
Deferred during the year 23,094 133,278
Released 1o the consolidated income statement (32,130) (136,208)
Transletion difference (57 {2 685)
At the ead of the period 6,321 15414

Deferred revenue represents accounts billed to and accepted by customers in excess of the actual percentage of
completion of the projects (Nofe 40).

38, TAXES PAYABLE OTHER THAN INCOME TAX
As at December 31, taxes payable other than income tax comprised the following:

It thousands of USD 2012 2011
VAT payebie 13,564 7,024
Taxes payable it Indio 12,889 13,729
Social tax 854 558
Personal incomie tax 811 702
Withholding tax from non-residents 556 339
Provision for taxes 51 -
Other taxes . 1,286 363

o 30011 22,715
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33, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, other current liabilities comprised the following:

In thousands of USD 2012 2011
Due to employees 13,684 12419
Provision for constructive obligation 7,625 5,746
Recopnized iosses 5,262 1,032
Warranties accrued for completed contracts 2,657 2,132
Due to pension fuads 744 627
Financial guarantees 11 0
Other 6,625 17497

36,572 39463

Provision amount shown in other current Habilities represents a provision made by the ISC OGCC KazStroyService in
2011 for a constructive obligation that probable will require an outflow of resources to seitle the obligation.

490, CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
The construction contracts analysis is presented as follows:

It thousands of USD _ 2812 2011
Revenue recognized at the reporting date (for uncompleted contracts) 2,162,253 2,209,107
Contract cost recognized (uncompleted contracts) {1,873,098) (1,928,577}
Expected contract losses (uncompleted contracts) (2,831} (1,047)
Recognized profits less recognized losses (uncompleted contracts) 286,324 279,483
Revenue recognized at the reporting date {for uncompleted contracts) 2,162,253 2,205,107
Unbllled revenues (354,692) {344,462)
Due to customers 6,321 15414
Total progress billing (for uncompleted contracts) 1,773,882 1,880,059
‘Franslation difference {4,109) (22,740}
VAT recoverable 125,288 116,222
Progress billing including VAT {eumulative for uncompleted contracts) 1,895,061 1,973,541
Paymenis received under current contracts 1,933,172} (2,049,920)
Advances received under current contracts 230,232 251,113
Agcounts receivable under current contracts 193,121 174,734
Accounts receivable under completed contracts 21,388 61,359
Accounts recefvable, total 213,506 236093
including retention (for uncompleied conteacts) 53,624 48,554

Revenue recognized in 2012 (for uncompleted contracts) comprised revenue recognized before 2012 in the amount of
USD 1,327,876 thousand (before 2011: USD 1,234,027 thousand) and revenue in the amount of USD 834,377 thousand
recognized during 2012 (2011: USD 975,080 thousand). As at December 31, the uncompleted contracts were at various
stages of completion.

Under certain provisions of construction comtracts, the Group is obliged to rectify construction defects identified by a
customer subsequent to construction completion, Such warranty generally extends for 2 maximum period of two years
from the date of construction acceptance, As at December 31, 2012 the Group had commitment on future warranty
works estimated in the amount of 8,682 USD thousand (2011: 6,296 USD thousand). Management believes that the
amount of estimated warranty commitment as at December 31, 2012 is adequate. No contingence assets related to
construction confract existed for the Group.

As of December 31, 2612, JSC OGCC KazStroyService had advances received for the works to be performed through
November 2013 and throughout June 2014 (Note 32, 36).

M ErNST & YOUNZL A ccountants LLT
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41, RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are congidered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

All related party transactions are considered and reviewed, If they are deemed to be not at arm’s length transactions,
then discounting is provided, if necessary,

Related party transactions were made on terms agreed to between the parties that may not necessarily be at market rates,
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group has not recorded any Impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties (2011: nil) as well as any expenses for bad or doubtful debts (2011: nil).

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with related parties during
2012 and 2011 and the related balances as at December 31:

Associntes
It thousands of USD . _ 2012 2011
Purchase of services 439
JSC PSN KazStray - 439
Lozns provided to related parties doring the year - 996
JSC PSN KazStroy - 995
Loans repaid by related parties during the year 1,301 4,500
JSC PSN KazSiroy 1,301 -
Keppel Kozakhsian - 4,500
Finance cost - 149
JSC PSN KazStroy - 124
Keppel Kazakhstan - 25
Finance income ¥l T
JSC PSN KazStroy T8 74
Keppel Kozakhstan
Associztes

2012 2011
Trade accounts recelvable and advances paid - 27
JSC PSN KazStray - 27
Trade accounts payable, advanoes received and other current lighilitics - -
Loans to refated parties -~ 1,308
JESC PSN KezStroy - 1,308
Keppel Kazakhstan - -

In 2008, the Group provided an interest free, unsecured loan to an associate company, JSC PSN KazStroy, for & total
amotnt of USD 323 thousand (KZT 48,000 thousand), with initial maturity in March 2009, In 2010, the terms of loan
were changed and it became interest-bearing with interest rate of 8%. In December, 2011 the maturity date of the loan
was prolonged to March 2012, The loan was fully repaid in February 2012,

In April and May, 2011 the Group provided two interest-bearing unsecured loans to JSC PSN KazStroy amounting to
KZT 73 million each (USD 497.5 thousand each) with an interest rate of 8% and with initial maturity in October and
November 2011. In December 2011, the date of redemption of the loans was proionged until March 31, 2012,

On November 1, 2010 and May 25, 2009 the Group issued corporate non-financial guarantees in favor of construction
contract performance concluded by JSC PSN KazStroy with AGIP Kazakhstan North Caspian Operating Company
N.V. As at December 31, 2012 the total amount of outstanding guarantees is equivalent to USD 5,326 thousand (201 1:
USD 5,295 thousand).

Name of entity _ Refationship
AT Holding Europe BV, Parent
KazStroy Service Infrastructure B.V, Parent
Fraseli Investments Sarl Parent
J5C PSN KazStroy IVC (“PSN KazStroy™ Assooiate
Keppel Kazekhstan LLP (“Keppel™) Associate
IskerKazstroyservice Assoriate
Service Pipeline LLP Associate

5 G Alcountants LLP
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41, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Parent
There were no transactions of the Group with the parent during reporting period.

Associates

Transactions with associates include interest free and interest bearing loans described in details in Nofes 76 and 24. In
addition, JSC PSN KazStroy acts as subcontractor for the Group providing services related to exploitation and technical
maintenance of oil properties and engineering services for various construction contracts.

Except for the interest rate fiee loan, ali transactions were done at arms lengths.

Compensation to key management personnel

Key management personne] consist of ditectors, members of board of directors and management board of the Group
and subsidiaries. Key management personnel totaled 22 persons as at December 31, 2012 (2011: 34 persons). Total
compensation to key management personne! included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to USD 3,148 thousand and USD 4,322 thousand for the years ended
December 31, respectively., The compensation to key mansgement personnel consists of contractual salary and
performance bonuses based on operating results.

It thousands of USD 2812 2011
Performance bonus 26 118
Contractual salary 3,122 4,204

3,148 4,322

42, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Purchase commitments
Ae at December 31, the Group had the following purchase commitments.

In thousends of USD 2012 2014
Purchase of equipment 1,846 2,537
Leasing commitments (within one year) 4,401 4,407
Leasing commitements(from one year 1o five) 17,282 17,735
Leasing commitments(more than five vear) 3,534 8,458

27,063 33,137

The Group had certain commitments related to the purchase of equipment and inventory and office spuce rent in varipus
locations in the Republic of Kazakhstan and India.

In 2009, the Group entered into operating lease agreement to rent an administrative office loeated in Alnraty,
Kezakhstan for the period from 2010 till 2018,

Warranties

Under certain provisions of construction contracts, the Group is obliged to rectify construction defects identified bya
customer subsequent to construction completion. Such warranty generaily extends for a maximum period of two years
from the date of construction acceptance, As at December 31, 2012 the Group had commitment on future warranty
wotks estimated in the amount of USD 8,682 thousand (2011; USD 6,296 thousand). Menagement belicves that the
amount of estimated warranty commitment as at December 31, 2011 is adequate,

-
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43, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Taxation

Kazakhstani {ax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying inferpretations, and changes, which can occur
frequently. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Group may
be challenged by the relevant authorities,

Tax laws in India and Burope are settled and will not be subject irrational interpretations,

The Group believes that it has paid or accrued all taxes that are applicable. Where practice concerning tax application is
unclear, the Group has accrued tax liabilities based on management’s best estimate. The Group’s policy is to accrue
contingencies in the accounting period in which a loss is deemed probable and the amount is reasonably determinable.

As at December 31, 2012 management belleves that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and that it
is probable that the Group’s tax positions wili be sustained.

Environmental matters

The Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations, Whilst management is of the opinion that the
Group has met the Government’s requirements concerning environmental matters, there can be no assurances that
contingent liabilities do not exist.

Guarantee fssued

On November 1, 2010 and May 25, 2009 the Group issued corporate non-financial guarantees in favor of construction
contrect performance concluded by JSC PSN KazStroy with AGIP Kazskhstan North Caspian Operating Company
N.V. As at December 31, 2012 the total amount of outstanding guatantees is equivalent to USD 5,326 thousand (2011
USD 5,295 thousand),

44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Guarantee issued

The Group’s principal financia) liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the Group’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations, The Group has loan reccivables, trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations,

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and credit risk,

Interest rate risk

The Group's only potential interest rate risk relates to interest payable associated with its variable interest borrowings.
The Group does not enter into any hedging instruments to mitigate any potential risks since mapagement does not
believe the interest rate risk associated with the loan obligations is significant,

3 FrNsT & YOURY: Accountants LLP
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Financial Statements

44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk {continved)

As at December 31, 2012 approximately 9% of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed interest rate (2011: 73%). The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity of a possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before income tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). The impact on the Group's

equity is the same,

Increase/ decrease  Effecton profit

in bagis points before fax
1n thousands of USD
December 31,2012
INR +180 (1,428)
EUR +106 23
usnH +108 (2313
INR =100 1,428
EUR -190 23
usp -160 2,313
2011
NR +100 {927
EUR +104 {340}
USD +100 (49}
NR -160 927
EUR -100 340
Ush =100 49
HERNST & G Accountants LLP
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Foreign curreney risk

A portion of the Group’s purchases is denominated in foreign currencies {not USD) and the Group raised a substantial
amount of foreign currency denominated short-term berrowings, which exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.
During 2012, the Group’s sales denominated in foreign currencies comprised approximately 69% (2011: 68%), and
approximately 97% of the Group’s costs were denominated in foreign currencies (2011; 87%).

The Group doss not hedge balances denominated in foreign currencies since management does not beheve the foreign
exchange risk is significant.

The foltowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a possible change in the foreign currency exchange rate with all
other variables held constant of the Group’s profit before income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

Effect on profit befors tax

Index of change in Weskening of Strengthening of
In thousands of USD exchange rates USD USD
2012
KZTrate 1,57% 266 (266)
EUR rate 10,77% (21N 277
RUR rate 16,74% (188) 188
INR rate 5,00% 1,666 £1,666)
2011
KZT rate 10.72% (9,288) 9,288
EUR rate 16.33% {590} 590
RUR rate 15.01% (241} 24}
INR rate 5.00% {5ih 511
Credit risks

Financial assets, which potentially subject the Group to the credit risk, consist principally of trade receivables;
borrowings to related parties are insignificant, The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The carrying amount of accounts receivable, net of
allowance for itpairment of receivables, represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk, Although collection of
receivables could bs influenced by economic factors, management believes that there is no significant risk of loss to the
Group beyond the allowanee already recorded.

At December 31, the Group had 21 customers (2011: 28 customers) that owed the Group more than USD 1 million each
and accounted for approximately 24% (2011: 85%) of all trade recelvables for construction works outstanding. There
were 5 customers (2011: 10 customers) with balances greater than USD 5 million accounting for just over 77% (2011;
70%) of the total amounts receivable for construction works, Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customers credit risk management on 2
regular basis, The Management of the Group estimated the customer credit risk as low.

Concentrations of credit risk may arise from cash and cash equivalents that are solaly held in Kazalkhstani and Indian
banks, The Group’s treasury department is managing credit risk from balances with banks according to the poliey
implemented in the Group. Funds are held only in approved banks and within credit [imits assigned to each bank.
Financial loss is mitigated by setting the limits to minimize the concentration of risks. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position is the carrying amounts as Hlustrated in Note 28,
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (vontinued)

Credit risks (continued)
With respect 10 credit risk arising from Joan receivables and other financial assets the Group's exposure to credit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Credit risk in relation to trade accounts receivable for the construction contracts is mitigated by offsetting an amount to
recefve from customer and an amount to be paid to subcontractors, As the Group’s major customers for construction
confracts are mostly state-owned entities or governmentally controlled joint-ventures, the Group believes that they are
reliable and o high credit quality and, hence there is no significant credit risk with these customers.

The Group's maximum exposure for financial guarantess is hoted in Note 32,

Guarantee given

The individual subsidiaries within the Group issued guarantees to its subsidiaries as pert of security for loans provided
by banks. Full description of guarantees jssued is in each of barks loans granted.

Collateral
The Group pledged different types of assets for collateral requirements by banks.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings were secured by certain assets and their carrying values are as follows:

in thousands of USD
2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment 129,858 82,248
Inventories 1,061 1,077
Accounts receivable 151,844 221,177
GDR 535,000 485,000
Cash 7,911 6,086
Other assets 152,795 195,993
969,509 991,581
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds o meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value,

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool, This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets and projected cash flow from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafls, bank and parficipants® borrowings. 48.1 % of the Group's debt will mature in less than one year at
December 31, 2012 (2011: 89%) based on catrying value of borrowings reflected in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.
Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders,

Equity price risk

The Group hoids LSE listed equity securities, i.e. 50 million GDR’s of Zhaikmunai L.P. At the Reporting date, the fajr
valye of GDR's portfolio was USD 535,600 thousand. By holding these assets the Group is exposed to equity price risk,
defined as the risk of declining equity prices, which can result in the decline of the assets recognized in the balance
sheet and hss direct effect on profit of Joss of the Group. The Group closely monitors the ahove price risk. Reporis on
the GDR's porifolio and market research are submitted to the Group’s senior management on at least monthly basis,
Depending on the price behaviour and the use of price threshold floors the decision to sell or keep the portfolio Is to be
taken
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial Statements

44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {vontineed)

Liquidify risk
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group financial liabilities at December 31, based on contractual
undiscounted payments.
In thousands of USD
Upon 3-12
2012 request < 3 months months  1-5 years Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 76,217 4,239 85,698 266,810 432,964
Bonds payable - 3,001 3,001 87,027 93,029
Lease payable - 629 1,663 2,549 4,841
Trade accounts payable - 125,911 28,995 - 154,906
Other current lighilitles ((fess warranty provision, - -
recognized losses and provisien for constructive
ubiigations) 19,668 1,261 20,929
Cther non-current Yiabilities (Jess: warranty provision and - - -
advances) 14,190 14,190
76,217 133,448 120,618 370,576 720,859
Upon 312
2011 reguest <3 months months 1.5 years Total
Interest beering loans and borrowings 96,951 71,605 294,389 33,325 496,270
Bonds payable - - - - -
Lease payable - 640 [,84¢ 4918 7,398
Trade accounts payable - 152,031 14,940 - 166971
Other current labilities {fess warranty provision, -
recogaized losses and provision for constructive
ohiigations) 29,759 1,541 - 31,300
Other non-current labilities {less: warranty provision and
advences) - - - 3,300 3,300
96,951 254,035 312,710 41,543 705,235

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing
the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages s capital structure and makes adjustments to it, if deemed necessary.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings, bonds payable and finance lease
Hability, and equity, comprising Issued capital and retained eamnings, The group maintains the gearing ratio in the range

of 30%-70%.

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

In thousands of USD 20312 2011

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 415,353 491,058

Notes payabls 4,943 8,083

Bonds peyabie THE6S -

Finance fease lability 4,404 6,457

Trade accounts payables 154,905 166,971

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash {38,424) {20,681}

Net debt 613,843 651,878

Equity 712,266 564,353

Capitel and net debi 1,331,109 1,216,233

Gerring ratfo 46% 54%

I EeN (; Accountants LLP
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fajr values

Fair value is defined as the amount at which an instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable willing parties according to arm’s length conditions, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. As no
readily available market exists for u large part of the Group’s financial instruments, judgment is needed to arrive at a
fair value, based on current economic conditions and the specific risks atiributable to the instrument,

All the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are carried at their estimated fair values for the years ended December
31.

The carrying amount of cash, trade accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current monetary assets and
liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturity of these financial instruments, Borrowings and
lease liabilities are stated at amortized costs which approximats thelr fair values.

For amounts due from related parties maturing in over twelve months, the fair value represents the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at year-end market rates. The carrying value of amounts due from related parties
maturing within twelve months approximated their fair value,

Int housands of USD Carrying smount Fairvaiue

2012 2001 2612 2011
Financial assets:
Other non-current assets 17,969 8,87 17,969 8,871
Accounts receivable 199,169 235,559 198,165 235,559
Unbilled revenve 395,601 344,462 395,601 344,462
Interest receivable 350 Jos 350 306
Loans to related parties - 1,308 - 1,308
Financial asset at falr value through profit and loss £35,000 483,000 535,000 485,000
Bank deposits 28,514 19,855 28514 19,855
Cash and cash equivalent 37,633 19,627 37,633 19,627
Restricted cash

791 1,064 791 1,064

In thowsareds of USD Canryingamount Fairvalus

2012 2011 2012 2611
Finwrcial Tabilities:
Floating rate borrowinps 376,314 132,011 376,514 132,011
Fixed mte: borrowings 39,039 358,047 39,039 364,047
Naotes payable 4,943 3,083 4,943 8,083
Bonds payable 77,665 - 78,602 -
Lease payable 4,401 6,457 4,401 6,457
Trade accounts payable 154,905 166,971 154,905 166,971
Loans from other entities 116 124 116 124
Other current linbilities (less: warranty provisions,
recognized Josses and constructive abligation) 24,145 30,553 24,145 30,553
Other non-current labilitles (less: warranty payabie snd
advances recelved) 6,208 3,300 6,208 3,300
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44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

Fair value hierarchy

As at December 31, 2012, the Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair vakue on the statement of
financial position

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instraments by
valuation technique:

Levzl 1! quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are cbservable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have & significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data

Assets measured at fair value

I thousands of USD 2012 Level § Level 2 Level 3
Financlal essef at falr value through proflt and loss

Equity securities 335,000 535,000 - -
LAabilities measured at fair value

In theusards of USD 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liability at fair value through profit and loss

Bonds payable 77,665 77,665 - -

During the reporting period ending December 31, 2012, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Leve] 2fair value
measurements,

45, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Group Restructuring

As at February 2013, within the Group restructuring exercise (“Group Restructuring”™), the Honorable Bombay High
Coutt has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Petron Civil Engineering Private Limited, Petron Investments
Private Limited, Amritha SharanyaLeasing and Investments Private Limited and SRA Finance and Investments Private
Limited with KazStroyService Infrastructure India Private Limited and their respective sharsholders and creditors.

As result of the restructuring, KSSIIPL will be amalgamated with four Indian subsidiaries of KSS Hungary:
The following companies will be merged within the Group:
e  Petron Civil Engineering Construction Limited,
©»  SRA Finance & Investments Private Limited,
»  AmrithaSharanys Leasing and Investment Private Limited,
s  Petron Investments Private Limited.
The Court approval has been filed with Registrar of Companies in India on Marck 28, 2013,
As at February 15, 2013, 25% of shares in OGCC KazStroyService JSC were transferred at cost to KazStroyServices
Hungary Kft (KSS Hungary).

On March 29, 2013 the shareholders of OGCC KazStroyService JSC have resolved to teansfer its 100% subsidiary
KSSHPL (30,618,500 shares of INR 10 each) in favour of K88 Hungary as gift deed.

H NG Accountants LLP
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{before proposed appropriation of current year result)

In thousands of USD

Assets
Fixed assets
Financial fixed assets:

Investments in subsidiaries
1.0an to subsidiary

Current asseis

Receivables:

Investrnent in securities
Receivables group companies
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances
Total assets

Shareholder’s equity and lisbilities

Shareholder’s equity

Share capital

Share premiam

Legal reserve translation adjustment
Legal reserve revaluation

Retained eamings

Resutt for the year

Long term Habilities
Loans

Current lighilities
Loans

Payables group and affiliated companies
Other liabilities and accrued expenses

Total equity and liabilities

HNote

10

The notes on pages 72 through 78 are an integral part of these consolidated financial stafements.

72

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
412,659 342,378
200 400
413,459 342,778
535,000 485,000
65 5
137 21
538,102 485,023
23,569 14,748
972,230 TERTT)
26 26
28,686 28,686
{37,866) (31,002)
27,840
557,470 700,636
122,349 (147,538)
698,505 550,718
219,653 _
- 232,395
54,072 291,831
972,230 842,549
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

SEPARATE PROFIT AND L.OSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended December 31, 2012

in thousands of USD

Note 2012 2011
Income subsidiaries after income taxes 5 69,931 61,364
Other income and expenses afier income taxes 52,418 {208,802)
Net loss/profif afier taxation 122,349 {147,538)

The notes on pages 72 through 78 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

fdﬂ"
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KazStroyService Global B,V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

1. GENERAL
General

KazStroyService Global B.V. (“the Company”} was incorporated as a }imited liability company ander the laws of the
Netherlands on February 11, 2009 and has its statutory seat in Amsterdam. The registered address of the Comipany is
Strawinskylsan 411, 1077XX Amsterdam.

During the year 2011 a merger took place whereby in exchange of shares of the Company, subsidiaries of the
shareholders” have been combined into a new business combination. A business combination is a “common control
combination If the combining entities are ultimately controlied by the same parties both before and after the
combination, and the common control is not transitory.

As at December 31, 2012, the major sharcholders’ of the Company are KazStroyService Infrastructure B.V., the
Netherlauds, Fraseli Investments Sarl, Luxembourg, AT Holdings Europe B.V. (fonmerly named KazStroyService
Holding B.V.), the Netherlands and ELQ Investors II Legd, England.

Reporting currency

Due to the fact that the majority of the operations consist of US Dollar transactions, the Company has adopted the US
Dollar as its functional and reporting currency.

Activities

The main activities of the Company sare holding, managing and financing of group companies.
The Group’s principal activities are to undertake and execute engineering, procurement and construction projects
through its operating subsidiaries in Kazakhstan, Middle East and India.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

General

The parent company financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Pert 9, Book 2 of the Dutch
Civil Code, subsection 8 of section 362, Book 2, Dutch Civil Code, which allows companies that apply IFRS as
adopted by the European Union in their consolidated financial statements to use the same measurement principles in
their parent company financial statements. The Company has prepared these company financial statemenis using this
provision and the aecounting policies used, are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financizl statements except for
the measurement of investment in subsidiaries.

As the financial data of KazStroyService Global B.V, (the parent company) are included in the consolidated financial
statements, the profit and loss account in the parent company financial statements is presented in condensed form (in
atcordance with section 402, Book 2 of the Netherlands civil Code).

The financial statements are presented in US Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Business combinations

A business combination is 2 *common coniro] combination” if the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the
same parties both before and after the combination, and the common control is not trensitory. According to the
management of the Company the relevant and reliable accounting policy for the Company and the Group is the pooling
of interests method.

Under the pooling of interest method the following is applicable:

v The assets and [abilities of the subsidiaries are recorded at book value not fair value with related adjustments
to achieve uniform accounting policies,

» The difference between the Company’s cost of investment and the subsidiaries equity is directly
charged/credited to equity,

¢ Comparative amounts are restated as if the combination had taken place at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.

:  YOUNG Accountants LLP
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KazStroyService Global B.V. Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (continued)

Investmenis in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the balance sheet based on their net msset value in accordance with the
aforementioned accounting principles of the consolidated financial statements,

Changes in accounting policies

In 2011 the Company prepared consolidated firancial statements for the first time, in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the European Union and the parent company uses the same measurement principles in its separate financial
statements.

Consequently in 2011 the Company changed its accounting policy of the valuation of the investments in securities from
cost price to market value as quoted at the relevant stock exchange,

3. EMPLOYEES

During 2012 and 201 1, the Company had no employees,

In 2012 the remuneration of directors of the legat entity charged to the company and its subsidiaries or group companies
was pil (2011: nil).

4. AUDITORS FEE

Expenses for services provided by the Parents Company’s independent auditor, Ernst & Young Accountants LLP, and
its member firms and/or affiliates to KazStroyService Global B.V, and its subsidiaries can be specified as follows:

In thousands of USD
2012 2011
Audit fees 639 562
Audit related fees 24 16
Tax advisory fees 93 396
Other non-sudit fees 15 72
S S W
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KazStroyService Global B.V.

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Financial Statements

5, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has the following directly and indirectly owned subsidiary companies as at

December 31, 2012:

Mame
Directly owned:

KazStroyService Management Services Pte Ltd,
KazStroyService Lid, UK

KazStroyService Investinent Pie Ltd,
KazStroyService Hungary Kit.

ISC OGCC KazStroyService
KazStroyService Globat Engineering B.V.
Petron Engincering Construction Ltd

Indirectly owned:

Petron Engineering Construction Lid

KuzStroy Engincering (UX) Limited

Petron Civil Engineering Private Limited

Petron Investments Private Limited

Amritha Sharanya Leasing and Investment Private Lid,
SRA Finance & Investments Private Limited
Bhubaneshwar Expressways Private Limited
KazStroyService Infiastructure India Private Limited
Engineering and Procurement Services LLP
KazStroy Engineering India Private Limited

Keppel Kazakchstan LLP, Kazakhstan

J8C "PSN KazStroy 060011, Kazakhstan

ISKER KazStroyService LLP, Kazakhstan

Pipeline Service LLP, Kazakhstan

In Janvary 2013 Kazstroy Engineering (UK) Limited was voluntary Jiquidated.

The movements during the year can be specified as follows:
In thousands of USD

Beginning of the year

Acqguisition subsidiaries

Incorporation subsidiaries

Revaluation movements

Difference equity by transfer within the KSS group
Translation differences

Dividends

Result for the year

End of the year

76

Registered office Interest %

2012 2011
Singapore 100 100
London 100 100
Singapore 100 100
Budapest 100 100
Almaty 100 100
Amsterdam 100 100
Mumbai 20 20
Mumbai 5247 5247
London 100 100
Membai 100 100
Mumbai 100 100
Mumbai 100 100
Mumbai 100 100
New Dethi 74 74
New Delhi 100 100
Almaty 100 100
New Dethi 100 100
Aktau 50 sp
Atyrau 50 50
Atyrau 50 50
Almaty 50 _
2012 2011
342,378 320,590
- 18,326
- 11,579
32,212 —
- (11,0413
(6,774) {17,392)
(25,088) (41,048)
69,931 61,364
412,659 342,378

X : p

.ﬂ%ﬁgﬁ:’?’f){l icaﬁgrfgggg&%éiy




KazStroyService Global B.Y, Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012 _

6. LOAN TO SUBSIDIARY

In December 2011 the Company granted a loan to a subsidiary. The repayment date of the loan is on or before
December 31, 2013, The loan bears an interest of 3 months LIBOR plus 1% and the interest shall be payable on the
repayment date.

7. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

On November 6, 2009 the Company has entered into a Sale and Purchase and Investment agreement with Claremont
Holdings Limited relating to the acquisition of 50 million global depository receipts (*GDR4™) each representing one
common unit in Zhaikmunai L.P at a price of four US Dolars (US $4.00) per GDR. The GDRs are listed on the London
Stock Exchange and the quotation as at December 31, 2012 amaeunts to USD 10,70 per GDR (Degember 31, 2011:
USD 9.70). The transaction was completed at September 8, 2010 by KSS Global B.V. and was finded by issuance of
foan notes with 2 compounded interest rate of 12%. This loan was replaced by a credit facility with a bank institation in
Tanuary 2012

8 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

I thousands of USD
2012 2011
Current accounts 569 2,748
Short-term deposits 23,000 12,000
23,569 14,748

The funds maintained in the current account are freely available, Short term deposits mature respectively on January 9,
2013 (USD 8,000 thousand) and February 20, 2013 (USD 15,000 thousand),

9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The shareholders’ equity in the parent company financial statements equals the shareholders’ equity presented in the
consolidated financial statements. In accordance with the Netherlands Civil Code, legal reserves have to be established
in certain circumstances. The currency translation reserve and revalpation reserve sre legal reserves required by Dutch
law.

If the carrency translation reserve has a negative balance, distributions of reserves to the Company’s shareholders are
restricted,

Further included in the retained eamings is a legal reserve undistributed earnings joint ventures and associates for an
amount of USD 49,283 thousand (December 31, 2011: USD 42,164 thousand) consisting of the cumulative share in
income of joint ventures and associates less dividends received and adjusted for any direct equity movements of joint
ventures and associates,

Share Capital

On March 29, 2011 the Company changed its articles of association and amended the authorized share capital. The
authorized share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 90,000 and is now divided into 8,800,000 A shares and
200,000 B shares of EUR, 0.01 each. Further on May 19, 2011 the Company issued 33,334 A shares and 166,666 B
shares of EUR 0.01 each.

As at December 31, 2012 1,833,334 A shares and 166,666 B shares of EUR 0.01 each are issued and paid in (December
31, 2011: 1,833,334 A shares, 166,666 B shares of EUR 0,01 each). In the financial statements, the issued and fully
paid-in capital of EUR 20,000(2011: EUR 20,000) is translated into US Dollars using the year-end exchange rate of
EURI=USD 1.3194 (2011; EUR I = USD 1.2939).

UNL; Accountants m
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2012

16, LOANS

On September 9, 2010 the Company received a loan in the form of foan notes from Claremont Holding Ltd. for an
amount of USD 200,000 thousand. The initial maturity was for three years, and interest rate was 12% payable annually.
The loan notes and the interest have been repaid in January 2012,

2012
Loan amount 232,395
Repayment (232,395)

On October 12, 2011 the Company concluded a Credit Agreement with a bank institution whereby a loan facility of up
to USD 200,000 thousand and a revolving credit facility of up to USD 20,000 thousand was granted. As at 31 December
2011 no amounts were withdrawn.

The Company draw USD 200,000 thousand of the Ioan facility and USD 10,000 thousand of the revolving credit
facility in January 2012 and used it to repay the before mentioned loan notes and interest thereon.

The movements can be specified as follows:

In thousands of USD
2012
Loan amount 221,845

Less:

Issuance costs (3,692)
Amortization issuance costs 1,500
{2,192)
219,653

The interest rate on the (revolving) credit facility is Libor + 3.5 % payable quarterly. The repayment date of the loans is
12 October 2014.

A subsidiary of the Company and other related companies have issued guarantees concerning before mentioned
facilities and further the GDR’s issued by the partnership Zhaikmunai L.P. and owned by the Company are pledged as
security.

The Company should also comply with several financial covenants.

1. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The parent company has given a guarantee to other parties in relation to one of its subsidiaries whereby the Company
guarantees the performance by this subsidiary of all the obligations under the conchuded agree o the other parties.

Director //L/
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KazSiroyService Glohal B.V, Financial Statements

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended December 31, 2012

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent suditor’s report

Reference is made to the suditor”s report as included hereinafter.
Apprapriation of result for the financisl vear 2011

The ennusl report 2011 was epproved by written resolutions of the shareholders dated 11 December 2012, In
accordance with Dutch law and the relevant provisions of a company's articles of association, a company may approve
its anntual accaunts by written resolution instead of holding a general meeting,

Statutory rules concerning appropriation of the profit

According to Paragraph 23 of the aricles of Association, the profit for the year is at the disposal of the General Meeting
of Shareholders, The holders of A shares are entitled o 96.6667% of the profits of the Company and the holders of B
shares are entitled to 3.3333 % of the profits of the Company. The holders of A shares and B shares respectively are
entitled to said percentage of the profits of the Company pro rata to their respective nominaf shareholdings of A shares
and B shares,

Proposed appropriation of the result for 2012
Management proposes to add the profit for the year 2012 amounting to USD 122,349 theusand to the retained earnings,

Subsequent events

As at February 2013 the Honorable Bombay High Court has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Petron Civil
Engineering Private Limited, Petron Investments Private Limited, Amritha Sharanya Leasing and Investments Private
Limited and SRA Finance and Investments Private Limited with KazStroyService Infrastructure India Private Limited
and their respective shareholders and creditors, and hence creating a consolidated India operation for afl of its unlisted
activities in EPC and construction segments. The Court’s approval has been filed with Registrar of Companies in India
on March 28, 2013,

As at February 15, 2013, 25% of shares in OGCC KazStroyService JSC were transferred at cost t0 KazStroyService
Hungary K&t (K88 Hungary).

On March 29, 2013 the shareholders of OGCC KazStroyService JSC have resolved to transfer its 100% subsidiary
KSSIIPL (30,618,500 shares of INR 10 each) in favour of KSS Hungary as gift deed.

UNG Accountants LLP
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the shareholders and management of KazStroyService Global B.V., Amsterdam.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, of
KazStroyService Global B.V., Amsterdam, The financial statements include the consolidated financial
statements and the separate financial statements. The consolidated financial statements comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year then ended and notes to
consolidated financial statements, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. The separate financial statements comprise the separate balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012, the separate profit and loss account for the year then ended and notes to the
separate financial statements, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the Directors’ report in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Duteh Civil Code. Furthermore management is responsible for
such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinfon on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. This
requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error,

in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control refevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements

in our oplnion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
KazStroyService Global B.V. as at 31 December 2012, its resuft and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial statements

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and falr view of the financial position of
KazStroyService Global B.V, as at 31 December 2012 and of its result for the year then ended in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dufch Civil Code,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2:393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we have
no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the Directors’ report, to the extent we
can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the
information as required under Section 2:392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that the
Directors’ board report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial statements as
required by Section 2:391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 11 April 2013
Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by J.J. Vernooij
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